COAST MOUNTAINS BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82

BOARD OF EDUCATION
REGULAR BOARD MEETING

NECHAKO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 30, 2025
5:00 P.M.

HYBRID MEETING
(IN PERSON OR VIA ZOOM)

Learning Together, Realizing Success for All - Engage, Ignite, Empower



.

COAST MOUNTAINS BOARD OF EDUCATION SCHOOL DISTRICT 82

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 30, 2025 - 5:00 P.M. - HYBRID MEETING
NECHAKO ELEMENTARY SCHOOL - IN PERSON OR VIRTUAL VIA ZOOM

AGENDA

Presentation: New Skeena Middle School Video

1.

>~ w N

10.

1.

12.

13.
14.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THE TERRITORY & CALL TO ORDER

DECLARATION OF QUORUM

APPROVAL OF AGENDA Motion

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING _

4.1 Regular Meeting of the Board, February 26, 2025 Motion | Attachment
RECEIPT OF RECORDS OF IN CAMERA MEETING _

5.1 Summary of In Camera Meeting, February 26, 2025 Motion | Attachment
BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES ‘

6.1 2024/2025 Hazelton French Immersion Consultation Follow-Up Motion | Attachment
CORRESPONDENCE

- There was no correspondence received

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS’ MONTHLY REPORT - APRIL 2025 Motion Attachment
INDIGENOUS EDUCATION REPORT - MARCH/APRIL 2025 Motion Attachment

STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS
10.1 Business Committee Report (Trustee Ed Harrison)

10.1.1 Business Committee Meeting Minutes, April 9, 2025 Mot'!on Attachment
10.1.2 Ministry Estimated Operating Grants 2025/2026 Announcement Motion | Attachment
10.1.3 Ministry Response to Annual Five-Year Capital Plan Submission Bylaw | Attachment

2025/2026 & Capital Bylaw 2025/2026 - CPSD82-01
10.2 Education Committee Report (Trustee Angie Maitland)

10.2.1 Education Committee Meeting Minutes, April 15, 2025 Motion | Attachment
10.2.2 Board/Authority Authorized Course: Resiliency Grade 12, North Motion | Attachment
Coast Distance Education Program (NTETC)
NEW BUSINESS
11.1 Maintenance & Facilities Department Replacement Vehicles Motion Attachment
TRUSTEE REPORTS
12.1 Board Chair Report — April 2025 Motion Attachment
12.2 Trustee Reports Information Verbal
QUESTION PERIOD
ADJOURNMENT

Pages 2-13

Pages 14-15

Pages 16-19

Pages 20-32
Pages 33-45

Pages 46-48
Pages 49-54
Pages 55-59

Pages 60-77
Pages 78-94

Pages 95-98

Pages 99-102

Next Reqular Meeting of the Board of Education, Coast Mountains School District 82:
Wednesday, May 28, 2025, 5:00 p.m. — Hybrid Meeting — Bear Valley School, Stewart

“L earning Together, Realizing Success for All - Engage, Ignite, Empower”




ﬁ; oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #4.1
Action: X Information:
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date: April 30, 2025
Topic: Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board, February 26, 2025

Background/Discussion:

Minutes as attached.

Recommended Action:

THAT the minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board held February 26, 2025 be approved.

Presented by: Secretary Treasurer




REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
OF SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 - 5:00 P.M.

HAZELTON SECONDARY SCHOOL - LIBRARY
HYBRID MEETING (IN PERSON OR VIRTUAL)

PRESENT WERE: ' Chair - M. Warcup
y 4 - E. Harrison

- y(virtual) -W. Jones
>~ VieeChair - K. Jonkman

r

- A. Maitland
5 (virtual)».- M. Maxim
y (virtual) =4 Sundell
Superintendent of Schools : / - T. MacMillan
Secretary Treasurer - G. Fuller
Recording Secretary i - C. Gagnon
DISTRICT STAFF PRESENT:
Director of Instruction, Leaming Services - P. Barron
Director of Instruction, keamer Support - J. Nieckarz
Director of Facility Sefvices - R. Schibli
District Principal, Early Leaming & French immersion - T. McDonald
District Vice Principal, Indigenous Education (virtual) - B. Azak

Board Chair Warcup acknowledged with respect the school district's business being conducted on the
unceded traditional territories of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a, Ts'msyen and Lheidli T'enneth Peoples
noting Trustees Jones, Maxim and Sundell attended the meeting virtually from Stewart, Thornhill and
Prince George respectively. We are honoured to work with their children and privileged to live on these
lands.

A warm welcome was shared with meeting guests who joined in person and virtually noting the Board
was pleased to be in Hazelton to conduct its Regular Board Meeting. Special thanks were extended to
the staff and students at Hazelton Secondary School for hosting the Board's visit and for their welcoming
hospitality. Introductions followed by Trustees and District staff attending the meeting. Unfortunately,
the meeting was not livestreamed to the CMSD YouTube Channel due to last-minute technology issues.



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 2

Board Chair Warcup shared we were honoured to celebrate Hobiyee, the Nisga'a New Year, across
many of Coast Mountains’ schools. This important celebration marks the start of a new season and
reflects the traditional knowledge of the Nisga'a Nation, highlighting the connection between the moon
and the natural cycles of life. Schools engaged in learning opportunities that included drumming,
dancing, storytelling, and exploring the significance of Hobiyee in Nisga'a culture. This year the Hobiyee
will be celebrated by the Nisga'a Nation on February 28 and March 1.

Board Chair Warcup recognized and acknowledged the celebration of Black History Month during the
month of February. She noted recognition for French Immersion Weék in BC held during the week of
February 2 to 8 and the annual Women’s Memorial March for missing and:murdered Indigenous women
in Canada held on February 14. e

Board Chair Warcup noted that on February 26, Pink Shirt D;y school communities.across Canada will
come together for this annual event under the banner of kindness to demonstrate their commitment to
inclusive learning environments by wearing pink t6 symbolize thatawe do not tolerate bullying in our
communities. This year's theme, Let Kindness Grow, isinspired by moments of kindness, empathy and
understanding centered around the ideas of diversity, inclusion | and acceptance. The aim is to help
create a more kind, inclusive world by raising.awareness and standing up against bullying. Our schools
hold a variety of events to support anti-bullying day.and to practice kindness. Together we can make a
difference!

Board Chair Warcup indicated there:are no Committeé Meetings or Board Meetings in March. The next
hybrid Regular Board Megting is scheduled on Wednesday, April 30 at 5:00 p.m. in Kitimat at Nechako
Elementary School.

Board Chair Warcup indicated we are nearly three quarters through the school year and Spring Break is
arriving in approximately three weeks. She wished everyone, on behalf of the Board, a safe and fun
Spring Break with relaxation time, rest and time to be with family and friends.

Board Chair Warcup shared the following reminder for meeting guests regarding Question Period:

At the end of each Regular (Public) Board Meeting, there is a 10-minute question period for the
public. Questions must pertain to the agenda and can be presented in person at the Regular Board
Meeting or emailed no later than 4:00 p.m. on the day of the Regular Board Meeting to the attention
of Carole Gagnon, Executive Assistant.

Questions or comments about personal issues, individuals or property acquisitions are not
appropriate for public meetings. A written response to questions to the Board will be provided as
soon as practicable. Questions asked at the Regular Board Meeting are recorded for follow up by
the Board in the event an answer is not provided during the Question Period.



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 3

1. CALL TO ORDER

Board Chair Warcup called the meeting to order at 5:17 p.m.

2, DECLARATION OF QUORUM

A quorum was declared.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Motion #8780
THAT the agenda be adopted as circulated.

Carried
All in Favour

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETING
4.1  Regular Meeting, January 28, 2025
Motion #8781

THAT the minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board held January 28, 2025 be
approved.

Carried
All infFavour

5. RECEIPT OF RECORDS OF IN CAMERA MEETING
51  Summary of In Camera Meeting, January 28, 2025
Motion #8782

THAT the Summary of the In Camera Meeting of the Board held January 28, 2025 be
approved.

Carried
In Favour 6 / Abstained 1 (Trustee Maxim)



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 4

6. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

6.1 Hazelton French Immersion Consultation Presentation & Report

Motion #8783
THAT the Board receive for information the Hazelton French Immersion Program Review
Report as presented at the February 26, 2025 Regular Board, Meeting.

Carried " /

All'in Favour

1. CORRESPONDENCE
71 Correspondence Received from BC/Orﬁ/budsperso\n, Jay Chalke

Board Chair Warcup confirmed Trustees" intent o proceed writing a letter of advocacy
from the Board in response to the letters received from the BC Ombudsperson, Jay
Chalke on January 10 and February 10, 2025, fespectively regarding the investigation
he is initiating to determine whether the Ministry of Education and Child Care and school
districts are fairly administering and overseeing the exclusion of K-12 students, in
particular students with diverse needs. The investigation focuses on BC'’s public K-12
education system and. will not inchude private or independent schools. Board Chair
Warcup noted a motion was not required.

Notation:

. February 25, 2025 - Renee Syvret, Executive:Director with the Association des Francophones et
Francophiles du Nord-Quest (AFFNO) emailed @ letter in support of the Hazelton French Immersion
Program which was provided for the Board's information in preparation for the February 26 Regular
Board Meeting.

February 26, 2025 - Troy Peters, District Parent Advisory Council (DPAC) Chair emailed a letter in
support of the Hazelton French Immersion Program which was provided for the Board's information
in preparation for the February 26 Regular Board Meeting.

8. SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS’ MONTHLY REPORT - FEBRUARY 2025
Motion #8784

THAT the Superintendent of Schools’ Monthly Report to the Regular Board Meeting of February
26, 2025 be received as presented.

Carried
All in Favour



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 5

9. INDIGENOUS EDUCATION REPORT - FEBRUARY 2025

Motion #8785

THAT the Board receive for information the Indigenous Education Report for February 2025
prepared by Superintendent Tracey MacMillan.

Carried
All in Favour

10. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORTS
10.1  Business Committee Report (Trustee Ed Harﬁson)
10.1.1 Business Committee Meeting Minutes, February 12, 2025

Motion #8786

THAT the minutes of the Business Committee Meeting held on February 12,
2025 be received for information.

Carried
In Favour 6 / Abstained 1 (Trustee Maxim)

10.1.2 Quarterly Financial Statements, December 31, 2024

Motion #8787
THAT the Board receive for information the Quarterly Financial Statements as
at December 31, 2024.
Carried
All in Favour
10.1.3 Ministry 2024-2025 Amended Operating Grants
Motion #8788
THAT the Board receive for information the Ministry of Education and Child Care
2024-2025 Amended Operating Grants as presented.
Carried

All in Favour



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 6

10.1.4 2024-2025 Amended Annual Budget Bylaw

A Bylaw of THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 82
(COAST MOUNTAINS) (called the "Board”) to adopt the Amended Annual
Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2024-2025 pursuant to section 113 of the
School Act, R.S.B.C., 1996, c. 412 as amended from time to time (called the
"Act").

1. The Board has complied with the provisions of the Act, Ministerial Orders,
and Ministry of Education and Child Carel_PdIices respecting the Amended
Annual Budget adopted by this bylaw.

2. This bylaw may be cited as School District No, 82 (Coast Mountains)
Amended Annual Budget Bylaw for fiscal year 2024-2025.

3. The attached Statement2 shc;wing the estimated revenue and expense for
the 2024-2025 fiscal year andthe total budget bylaw amount of $81,486,564
for the 2024-2025 fiscal year was prépared in accordance with the Act.

4. Statement 2,4 and Schedules 1 to 4.are adopted as the Amended Annual
Budget of the Board for the fiscal year 2024-2025.

Motion #8789
THAT the 2024-2025 Amended Annual Budget Bylaw (Version: 8743-7997-
6015) be read afirst time the 26th day of February, 2025.

Carried

All in Favour

Motion #8790
THAT the 2024-2025 Amended Annual Budget Bylaw (Version: 8743-7997-
6015) be read a second time the 26th day of February, 2025.

Carried

All'in Favour

Unanimous consent was received and confirmed by Board Chair Warcup prior
to proceeding to third reading of the 2024-2025 Amended Annual Budget Bylaw.



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 7

Motion #8791

THAT the 2024-2025 Amended Annual Budget Bylaw (Version: 8743-7997-
6015) be read a third time, passed and adopted, the 26th day of February, 2025.

Carried
All in Favour
10.1.5 Ministry Data Collection Projected Enrolménts — 2025-2026, 2026-2027 &
2027-2028 School Years 4 :
Motion #8792
THAT the Board receive for infommation the Ministry Data Callection Projected
Enrolments for the 2025-2026, 2026-2027 ant.2027-2028 school years.
Carried
All in Favour
10.1.6 Trustee Remuneration Annual Review - CMSD82 Policy 5095
Motion #8793
THAT the Board approve an increase of 2.6% effective March 1, 2025 to include
all Trustee remuneration based on the 2024 Annual B.C. Consumer Annual Price
Index.
Carried

In Favour 6 / Abstained 1 (Trustee Maxim)

10.2 - Education Committee Report (Trustee Karen Jonkman)
102.1 Education Committee Meeting Minutes, February 12, 2025

Motion #8794

THAT the minutes of the Education Committee Meeting held February 12, 2025
be received for information.

Carried
All in Favour



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 8

10.2.2

Motion #8795

Carried
All in Favour

10.2.3

Motion #8796

Carried
All in Favour

1024

Motion #8797

Carried

Final Approval: Out-of-Province Field Trip Application, Caledonia
Secondary School Music Tour, Toronto MusicFest Canada, May 14-19,
2025

THAT the Board approve the Caledonia Seconidary School Out-of-Province
Band and Choir Field Trip Application to MusicFest Canada held in Toronto, May
14-19, 2025 at no cost to the Board and subjectto ensuring the safety of students
and adhering to Federal and Provincial travel advisories, regulations and
protocols through the travel dates.

Board Approval in Principle = Caledonia Iravel Club
- Out-of-Country Field Trip, Portugal and Spain Tour, Spring Break 2027

THAT the Board approve in principle the Out-of-Country Field Trip to Portugal
and Spain for Caledonia Secondary School's Travel Club to be held during
Spring Break 2027.

Mid-Year Update - 2024-2025 School Improvement Plans

THAT the Board receive for information the Mid-Year Update for each school
relating to their 2024-2025 School Improvement Plan as presented.

In Favour 6 / Abstained 1 (Trustee Maxim)

10



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 9

10.2.5 Mid-Year Update — Strategic Plan 2022-2027

Motion #8798
THAT the Board receive for information the Mid-Year Update for the 2022-2027
Strategic Plan and the Enhancing Student Learning Report review as presented.
Carried
All in Favour

11.  NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business to present.

12. TRUSTEE REPORTS
121  Board Chair Report - February 2025
Motion #8799
THAT the Board feceive for information'the Bdard Chair Report for February 2025,

Carried
All in Favour

122 BCSTA Spring Provincial Council Meeting Report
Motion #8800

THAT the Board receive for information the BCSTA Spring Provincial Council Meeting
Report as presented at the February 26, 2025 Regular Board Meeting.

Carried
All in Favour

12.3  Trustee Reports

Trustee Maxim commented on the Minister of Education and Child Care’s firing of the
entire Victoria School Board in a dispute over a safety plan where the Board barred police
from schools except in emergencies. Trustee Maxim further noted he will be updating
his letter to the Minister of Education and Child Care into the behaviour of this Board.

11



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 10

13.

QUESTION PERIOD

Frank Verde, a parent and MEMSS School PAC Chair, expressed his concern about the lack of
inclusion for Mount Elizabeth Middle/Secondary School students in extracurricular activities. He
highlighted the success stories of other schools and questioned the Trustees and the Board on
what actions will be taken to ensure MEMSS students can participate in activities like their peers.
He emphasized the disappointment that students from Kitimat cannot travel to Terrace for
basketball due to a non-existent policy and called for equitable apportunities for all students in
the district. £5F

Board Chair Warcup thanked Mr. Verde for his inquify noting District staff will address his
concerns and follow up with him. B

Taria Roberge, a concerned parent of Parkside Secondary School, expressed worries about
district administrators targeting students ‘over attendanceissues, particularly. at Parkside
Secondary School, an alternate education school. Ms. Roberge, whose Indigenous transgender
child feels targeted, urged Trustees and Board members fo address this harmful situation. As
an advocate for marginalized and Vuinerable students, Ms. Roberge emphasized the need for
culturally safe and inclusive measures, ensuring students:can voice concerns without facing
repercussions. Ms. Roberge highlighted the emotional impact.on her child, who is considering
dropping out due to the principal's actions and called for equitable treatment and support for all
students.

Board Chair Warcup thanked Ms. Roberge for raising her concems noting District Staff will
address her concerns and follow up with her.. Board Chair Warcup further noted the school
district is committedito inclusion, equity.and diversity.

Bryana Jack, a.parent on behalf of the Majagaleehi Gali Aks Elementary School French
Immersion students, expressed gratitude for the meeting being held in Hazelton. Unfortunately
for parents-caregivers; who care deeply about this meeting, many were unable to attend the
meeting as it wasn't @ good day for their schedules. She emphasized the importance of the
French /mmersion Program in their community, noting its high graduation rates and low
absenteeism compared fo other programs. She highlighted the success of students in the
French Immersion Program and called for more parent involvement to address absenteeism
issues. Ms. Jackalso requested future consultations to be scheduled at more convenient times,
considering the busy schedules of parents, especially single working parents. She stressed the
need for a supportive system that allows all parents to participate and have a voice in the
decision-making process.

Board Chair Warcup thanked Ms. Jack for her valued feedback which will be documented for the
Hazelton French Immersion Consultation Meetings to be scheduled in the fall 2025.

12



REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION OF
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)
HELD WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2025 Page 11

14. ADJOURNMENT

The next hybrid Regular Board of Education Meeting will be held on Wednesday, April 30, 2025
at Nechako Elementary School in Kitimat.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m.

Board of Education Chair ' Secretary Treasurer

13



g; oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #5.1

Action: X Information:

Meeting: Regular Meeting Date: April 30, 2025
Topic: Summary of In Camera Meeting of the Board, February 26, 2025

Background/Discussion:

Summary as attached.

Recommended Action:

THAT the Summary of the [n Camera Meeting of the Board held February 26, 2025
be approved.

Presented by: Secretary Treasurer

14



SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS AND DECISIONS MADE AT THE
IN CAMERA MEETING OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82 (COAST MOUNTAINS)

HELD FEBRUARY 26, 2025
PURSUANT TO SECTION 72(3) OF THE SCHOOL ACT

The Board of Education:

1. Discussed a legal issue.
2. Discussed personnel issues.

3. Discussed a property issue.

15



g .B‘f oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #6.1
Action: information: X
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date:  April 30, 2025
Topic: 2024-2025 Hazelton French Immersion Consultation Follow-Up

Background/Discussion:

As shared with Trustees via email on April 25, 2025, the attached letter from Superintendent
MacMillan to the Hazelton French Immersion parents and caregivers provides a comprehensive
overview in follow up to the Hazelton French Immersion Program consultations, the review report and
list of recommendations presented to the Board at its Regular Meeting held on February 26, 2025.

The overview addresses the ongoing efforts and plans to support and sustain the French Immersion
Program pending any resolutions offered through a continued consultation process during the 2025-
2026 school year. Superintendent MacMillan's letter provides official notice effective April 25, 2025 of
potential changes to the Hazelton French Immersion program, if resolutions are not found. This notice
is in conjunction with the Ministry of Education and Child Care’s French Immersion Program Policy.

During the 2025/2026 school year, monitoring of enrollment and retentions will be ongoing in the
French Immersion programs at Hazelton Secondary School and Majagaleehl Gali Aks Elementary
School.

Consultation meetings will be scheduled in the fall 2025 to engage the community, parents or
caregivers, staff, and students. Dates and times will be provided in the fall of 2025.

A presentation will be made to the Board at its Regular Meeting in February 2026 on the sustainability
of the French Immersion program in Hazelton.

Coast Mountains School District remains committed to ensuring all voices are heard in this
consultative process as we work toward sustainable French Immersion programming in Hazelton.

Recommended Action:

THAT the Board receive for information the 2024/2025 Hazelton French Immersion Consultation
Follow-Up letter issued by Superintendent MacMillan to the Hazelton French Immersion parents and
caregivers on April 25, 2025.

Presented by: Superintendent of Schools




» ° oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

3211 Kenney Street, Terrace, BC V8G 3E9
Tel. (250) 635-4931 or 1-855-635-4931 - www.cmsd.bc.ca

April 25, 2025
To: Hazelton French Immersion Parents and Caregivers

Dear Parents and Caregivers:
RE: 2024/2025 Hazelton French Immersion Consultation Follow-Up

On September 23, 2024, Interim Superintendent Janet Meyer wrote a letter to the Parent Advisory
Council (PAC) Chairpersons of Hazelton Secondary School and Majagaleehl Gali Aks Elementary School
to inform the French Immersion parents and caregivers in the Hazeltons, specifically at Hazefton
Secondary School, regarding the concerns pertaining to the student enroliment of the Hazelton French
Immersion program.

In this letter a detailed explanation of the Ministry of Education and Child Care’s policy on French
Immersion was explained and highlighted.

The school district had previously reviewed the French immersion program in both 2006 and 2017.

Following the initial communication, | extended a follow-up letter to the Hazelton French Immersion
parents and caregivers providing three community consultation dates. Tina McDonald, District
Principal of Curriculum Support was assigned to facilitate these sessions on December 4, 2024,
January 9, 2025, and February 10, 2025. The purpose of these consultation sessions was to bring
light to the attrition of student enrolment in French Immersion once they entered Hazelton Secondary
School.

The main discussion items were as follows: how can we promote sustainability in enrolment and
retention in French Immersion, the reasons why students are leaving the program, equity in teacher
workload, and fiscal responsibility.

A detailed report was presented to the Board of Education for Coast Mountains School District at its
Regular Board Meeting held on February 26, 2025, in Hazelton. A list of recommendations was made
for the Board of Education to consider.

Some of the recommendations that arose from the consultation process included better promotion of
the French Immersion program in Hazelton, support schools with retention, support both teachers and
administrators on enhancing their French Immersion programs, work with the high school
administrators on scheduling for trades and electives, and to support with the transition of our
students from Majagaleehl Gali Aks Elementary School to Hazelton Secondary School.

... continued

“L earning Together, Realizing Success for All - Engage, Ignite, Empower”

17



Ci_/bast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

Hazelton French Immersion Parents and Caregivers April 25, 2025
RE: 2024/2025 Hazelton French Immersion Consultation Follow-up

Page 2

Listed below are some of the ways the school district has supported Hazelton's French Immersion
programs in the last 2 years:

= Additional teaching position (FTE) at Majagaleehl Gali Aks Elementary School in both the
2023/2024 and 2024/2025 school years.

= Educational resources for French literacy.

= QOrganization of cultural activities.

= Supporting the oral speaking contests at the school, regional, and provincial levels.

= Providing French Immersion teachers with in-service on both reading and writing strategies.

Since the Regular Board of Education Meeting held February 26, 2025, district leaders have met with
Hazelton Secondary School’s administration to discuss scheduling. Students in grades 8-10 will have
additional blocks offered in French to ensure that they are meeting the Ministry of Education and Child
Care expectation for French language instruction. For high school students with scheduling conflicts,
online courses will be made available, and the French Immersion teacher will be provided with a
support block to assist students. Additionally, the school district has created new promotional
materials to support and encourage enroiment into the French Immersion program. On May 5, 2025,
District Principal Tina McDonald will be hosting a parent information night for French Immersion to
attract new parents to the program. Before the end of the school year, Principals Louise Ormerod and
Shylah Marshall will coordinate a time to transition the grade 7 students to Hazelton Secondary School.

Given the continued low enrollment for the French Immersion program, | wish to draw your attention
to the Ministry of Education and Child Care’s policy on French Immersion. The link to this policy is
provided below. This policy states that:

“Having established a program, school districts should promote the program and recruit students.
Should the enrollment become insufficient, school districts should consult parents to find solutions. If
there is no resolution to the problem, the district should give at least one year’s notice to parents of
any changes contemplated to permit full discussion and to allow parents time to consider alternatives
for their children.”

French Immersion Program - Province of British Columbia (gov.bc.ca)

Please be advised that, as of today's date, and pending any resolutions offered by a consultation
process, this letter will serve as Coast Mountains School District’s official notice to parents and
caregivers of potential changes to the program.

... continued

“l earning Together, Realizing Success for All - Engage, Ignite, Empower”

18



(i __/:cast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

Hazelton French Immersion Parents and Caregivers April 25, 2025

RE: 2024/2025 Hazelton French Immersion Consultation Follow-up

Page 3

During the 2025/2026 school year, District Principal Tina McDonald will monitor enrolment and
retention rates in the French Immersion programs at both schools. There will be opportunity to engage
community, parents or caregivers, staff, and students with future consultation meetings. Dates and
times will be provided in the fall of 2025. A presentation to the Board of Education on the sustainability
of the French Immersion program in Hazelton will occur in February 2026.

Yours sincerely,

N

Tracey MacMillan
Superintendent of Schools

cc: Coast Mountains Board of Education School District 82:
- Board of Education Trustees
Louise Ormerod, Principal, Hazelton Secondary School
Shylah Marshall, Principal, Majagaleehl Gali Aks Elementary School
Hazelton Secondary School Staff
Majagaleehl Gali Aks Elementary School Staff
Ginger Fuller, Secretary Treasurer
Tina McDonald, District Principal, Curriculum Support
Troy Peters, Chair, District Parent Advisory Council

“ earning Together, Realizing Success for All - Engage, Ignite, Empower”

19



i@ 5’ oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #8.

Action: X Information:

Meeting: Regular Meeting Date: April 30, 2025
Topic: Superintendent of Schools’ Monthly Report — April 2025
Background/Discussion:

Attached for reference is the Superintendent of Schools’ Monthly Report for presentation
at the April 30, 2025 Regular Board Meeting as prepared by Superintendent Tracey
MacMillan.

The Superintendent of Schools' Monthly Report will be shared with all staff and partner
groups as well as posted to the school district website following the Regular Board
Meeting.

Recommended Action:

THAT the Superintendent of Schools' Monthly Report to the Regular Board Meeting of
April 30, 2025 be received as presented.

Presented by: Superintendent of Schools

20



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

A Message from the Superintendent

Ama Sah / Good Day,

As we move further into 2025, | continue to be deeply grateful for the partnerships, dedication, and care that
define the Coast Mountains’ school communities. Our shared commitment to learner success, equity, and
wellness is evident in every school visit, classroom conversation, and community event.

Over the past several months, | have had the pleasure of attending several community events, and | am
continually impressed by the talents and spirit exhibited by our young people. Most recently, at the Music
Festival Finale, | had the opportunity to watch students sing, recite, dance, act, and perform musical pieces with
great skill and enthusiasm. In addition to the arts, | have also enjoyed cheering on our student athletes at various
sporting events, where their teamwork, determination, and sportsmanship have been truly inspiring.

In this month’s report, you’ll see a strong connection to the goals outlined in the Coast Mountains School District
Strategic Plan. As a system, we are focusing on three key areas: Improving Student Learning, Honouring Culture,
Diversity and Inclusion; and Fostering Well-Being. Each story, update, and initiative in the pages that follow
directly ties into these priorities.

We recognize that student reading levels need to increase, and that early success in literacy is foundational to a
child’s confidence and long-term learning. This is why we are preparing to implement a new K-6 Literacy
Framework in the Fall—designed in collaboration with educators and rooted in research-informed practice.

Like other districts across British Columbia — particularly in northern and remote regions — we are experiencing
ongoing recruitment challenges. Atthe same time, we’re finding solutions. Inthe pages ahead, you’ll read about
how we are strengthening relationships with universities and increasing teacher practicum placements, which
support both recruitment and gquality classroom experiences for students.

We also acknowledge that mental health and well-being continues to be a struggle for many learners.
Consequently, we are investing in increased mental health supports and trying novel strategies — from school-
based programs to interagency partnerships —to meet the evolving needs of our students and families.

| hope you find this month’s report informative, hopeful, and areflection of the thoughtful and tireless work taking
place across Coast Mountains School District. Together, we remain focused on creating inclusive, connected,
and supportive learning environments — places where all learners can thrive.

With gratitude and appreciation, Upcoming Dates:

gﬂW April 28 — National Day of Mourning

May 5 - Red Dress Day — Honouring MMIWG2S
May 13-15 - Student Adventures in Heaith Care
. May 14 - Business & Education Committes Meetings
Tracey MacMillan May 16 - Professional Development Day (No Classes)
Superintendent May 19 - Victoria Day (No Classes)
May 28 - School Board Hybrid Meeting (Stewart)
May 29 - Grade 7 Maker Day (NTETC)

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page10f1221
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

CMSD Board Chair Awarded King Charles Il Coronation Medal

The Coronation Medal program was created to mark the
Coronation of His Majesty King Charles Ill. It recognizes
individuals who have made a significant contribution to their
community, province, territory, region or community in Canada,
or attained an outstanding achievement abroad that brings credit
to our country. ’

On March 30, 2025, MP for Skeena-Bulkley Valley, Taylor
Bacharach presented Margaret Warcup, Trustee and Board of
Education Chair for Coast Mountains School District, with the
King Charles lll Coronation Medal for her dedication to long
service, leadership and volunteerism for community and region.
Margaret’s dedication to education, community service and
public trust distinguished her as an exemplary candidate for this

honour. e e : .
Skeena-Bulkley Valley MP, Taylor Bacharach presents
Margaret Warcup, CMSD Trustee and Board of Education

MP Bacharach shared that Margaret has done so much for our Chair with the prestigious King Charles lll Coronation |

e . Medal on March 30, 2025. Congratulations Margaret!
communities over her 50 years in the Skeena-Bulkley Valley

constituency. She has both professionally and through active volunteerism made a profound and lasting impact
on community development and education in our communities and region, making her a worthy recipient for the
King Charles Il Coronation Medal.

Margaret graduated with a Master of Science in Community .

Health and worked as a Physiotherapist where she helped ,\’—’g- o _g _iﬁ
children live their best lives possible. Margaret worked as a ! .
Program Director for the Terrace Child Development Centre, then N Cawriuan - Reges =
assumed the role of Executive Director at the Kitimat Child “ Margaret Warcup i
Development Centre which she led for 17 years. Margaret was . -
instrumental in establishing the University of Northern British o e
Columbia through her appointment to the Interim Governing - e s “l
Council. CH .|
There are many volunteer roles that Margaret has held and has CE o T s 3

exemplified honouring the Rotarian motto Service Above Self.

Congratulations Margaret! We celebrate the recognition she received for her dedication
and contributions made to our communities and the Northwest region!

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 2 of 1222
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

Keep Connected with SchoolMessenger

— As a school district, we are always striving to improve and enhance
' communications with our parents, caregivers, and families.

We recognize the importance of keeping parents and caregivers connected with
their child’s school. Coast Mountains School District (CMSD) will be using
SchoolMessenger, a safe and secure communication platform to send
automated phone calls and emails to parents for emergencies and attendance.
In the future, it may also be used for school updates, bussing updates,
newsletters, and district-wide events. Your account is free and an easy way to
keep connected.

We are excited to be rolling out SMS notifications (text messages) effective May 1, 2025 for all schools
across the school district. This new service will allow your child’s schoolto send important updates, reminders,
and emergency notifications directly to your mobile phone.

OFAC

An SMS message will be extended by SchoolMessenger inviting parents and caregivers to
optin to receive these notifications. Alternatively, you can opt in at any time by texting “Y”
to 978338 from your mobile phone by accessing the QR Code displayed to the right. You
will receive a confirmation message once your opt-in is successful. Kindly note that you
must opt in from each mobile device you wish to receive messages on.

Your contact information will be kept confidential, and you can opt out of SMS communications at any time.

If your child is registered in a CMSD school, then you are already set up to receive emergency and attendance
messages by phone or email. However, if you would like to receive other messages such as school updates and
newsletters, you must sign up to SchoolMessenger and set your notification preferences. Tell us what news you
would like to receive and how you want to be notified.

There is also a free SchoolMessenger App available for both iOS and
\\_)/\ SCHOOLMESSENGER®  Android based phones which enables you to receive notifications of school
messages. Download the App, setyour notification preferences, and move

the App to your phone's home screen for easy access!

To learn more about SchoolMessenger, how to create your SchoolMessenger Account and more, please
visit the school district’s website at https://cmsd.bc.ca/schoolmessenger.

We extend our appreciation to parents and caregivers for your ongoing support in helping us stay connected and
ensuring timely information is received regarding their child’s education.

If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to reach out to your School Principal for assistance.

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 3 of 122 3
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

UNBC Scholar Recipient from Caledonia Secondary

The University of Northern British Columbia (UNBC) Scholars program
recognizes Grade 11 students in Northern BC and Yukon for outstanding
academic achievement. The scholarship takes the form of a waiver of full
tuition to a maximum of 120 credits (or the number of credits required for a
bachelor's degree). Students do not apply to be UNBC Scholars. Rather, at
the start of their Grade 12 year, each high school in Northern BC and Yukon
indicates the student with the highest-grade point average (GPA) based on
the student's Grade 11 marks (minimum 80%). The GPA will be calculated
on the basis of the highest grade received in English 11 or 12 or English First
Peoples 11 or 12, and the highest grade received in Math 11 or 12, and the
next four highest marks in Grade 11 courses (to include three academic
courses and one elective).

In the 2023-24 school year, Brooklyn Frank was selected as Caledonia
Secondary School’s nominee for the UNBC Scholar award (displayed to the
right in the UNBC Scholar poster). She is currently at UNBC in Prince ___
George, working on a Bachelor of Science degree with the goal of continuing 2024 UNBC Scholar from Caledonia
on to medical school. The nominee for 2024-25 school year is Ben Carter. f,ilcgg‘fgi;‘;‘:’;’;fgj:’;l:;::'x};?lf:‘zzz

Ben will be attending UNBC in the fall with the financial support of the UNBC annual Maclean’s magazine rankings. As

Scholar program someone going into medicine, smaller
) classes and personal instructor attention

are key to her career success.

Kildala Elementary hosts Le Concours Régional

Throughout the month of March, Coast Mountains’ schools offering French
Immersion hosted their local French oral speaking contests. On Saturday, April 5,
Kildala Elementary School hosted Le Concours Régional for the school district’s
Grades 4-12 Immersion students at Kitimat’s Mount Elizabeth Theatre. In
attendance, 26 students from Terrace, Kitimat, and Hazelton bravely spoke about
a topic of interest. These topics varied from hockey themed, science based, life in
Terrace, the difference between motivation and discipline, the United Nations, the
benefits of French Immersion, and more. It was truly impressive to see how our
French Immersion students can not only write eloguently, but can memorize, and
present their speeches in front of an auditorium full of students, parents, teachers,
and judges.

Congratulations  to Audrey|

. . Arsenault, Grade 9 Skeena
One candidate from the group of presenting students was selected to represent OUr | wigge School student, in

school district in Vancouver at Le Concours Provincial on May 3. Congratulations | winning both in her category at
. . . . Le Concours Regional on April 5
to Audrey Arsenault, a Grade 9 Skeena Middle School student, in winning both | . .o selected to represent

her category for 9e année (Grade 9) French Immersion and for being selected to | ourschool district in Vancouver
N . tLle C Provincial
represent our school district in Vancouver. Audrey presented on Les Nations | ;ayz RUECOER RSt e

Unies et les O.D.D. (the United Nations and the O.D.D. international organizations).

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 4 of 122 4
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

Inclusive Education Student Success Stories

Leelynd has made tremendous progress engaging with his academic
program at Parkside Secondary School this year. He has committed
himself to the trades program at Coast Mountain College, where he
hopes to work with heavy machinery in the future.

In the past, Leelynd has struggled to commit to full attendance and
engagement with school. This year, Leelynd has shown himself fully
committed to his attendance and participation, acting as a leader to
his peers through his actions, and his commitments to his
responsibility.

We are so proud of Leelynd and we can’t wait to watch all of his
future successes in the trades as he progresses through his

Leelynd is pictured in the Trades Program Shop at

Coast Mountain College where he hopes to work program!
with heavy machinery in the future. Keep up the

good work, Leelynd!

Jesse, a young non-verbal autistic student at Kildala Elementary
School, has made remarkable progress this school year, showcasing
the power of inclusive education. Initially, he faced significant
challenges in engaging with others and often worked independently
in a separate space. Through the unwavering dedication of the
inclusive education team, his programming has been tailored to
support his unique needs, fostering his growth and confidence.

—— "] With the introduction of the PECS (Picture

| .
I '“,::T‘—:ﬁm Exchange Community System) program, Jesse
E b, now communicates with the help of his peers,
‘ el who actively and enthusiastically support him. SR e

PECs is a systematic way 10 teach a child how Jesse (r) has quite the fan club at recess. Genni -

i to communicate with someone else by handing Santos, Resource Teacher (l) at Kildala

[ | them a picture of what they want (reference Elgmentary, sharedthiswasthefirsttimefor/esse
using the PECS program being prompted to

PECS picture sample above). This program was originally designed communicate. By the fourth cracker request, he

for children with autism but can be used for other non-speaking gotit! Jesse now uses the PECS program and does
children as well. the exchange with no prompting. What an
accomplishment for Jesse!

This transformation exemplifies what students with complex needs can achieve when surrounded by a
compassionate and committed school team. The school’s nurturing environment has created a space where
diversity is celebrated, and all students feel valued.

Kildala Elementary School stands as an inspiring example of inclusivity in action, and this student’s
progress is a testament to the incredible possibilities of collaboration and care.

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 5 of 1225
who live, learn and play on the traditional (ands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga ‘a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

University Practicum Students Complete Successful
School Placements

Coast Mountains School District hosted university practicum
students from the University of Northern British Columbia (UNBC)
and the University of British Columbia (UBC). Congratulations to
each of the practicum students who recently completed their
school-based placements, marking a significant milestone in
their journey toward becoming professional educators. These
practicums are an essential component of teacher education
programs, provide aspiring teachers with hands-on experience in
real classroom settings under the guidance of experienced
mentor teachers.

Throughout their placements, the students actively engaged in
lesson planning, classroom management, student assessment,
and co-curricular activities. They had the opportunity to apply
educational theories in practical contexts, refine their teaching
strategies, and build meaningful relationships with students and
staff. Teachers and administrators praised the practicum
students for their enthusiasm, adaptability, and willingness to
learn. Many of the students brought fresh ideas and energy into Learning Services (far left), Superintendent Tracey
. . .o . MacMillan (second from the right), and Julia Nieckarz,
the classroom, contributing posmvely to the school community. | Director of Instruction Inclusive Education (far right). |

UNBC Practicum Placement Coordinator - School of
Education (second from the left) for her outstanding |
coordination and assistance in placing UNBC practicum
students with Coast Mountains’ schools. Pictured with

p -

A special shout-out is extended to Sheryl Edwards,
Sheryl include Phillip Barron, Director of Instruction
I

For the university students, the practicum offered a
valuable glimpse into the daily realities of teaching and
helped them grow both personally and professionally.
It also served as a platform to receive constructive
feedback, reflect on their practice, and develop greater
confidence in their teaching abilities.

We extend our gratitude and appreciation to the
sponsor teachers in our schools for supporting
practicum students, to the school leadership teams for
their support, and to the faculty advisors from UNBC
and UBC for their ongoing support.

UNBC Practicum Student Teacher, Tran Nguyen is pictured (1) Congratulations again to all practicum students for

during her school-based placement with the Kindergarten Class of . . . :
Uplands Elementary School with the guidance and assistance of their hard work, dedication and the meanmgfu’

Kindergarten Class Teacher, Mary-Anne Barron (r). A great impact they have made during their school

experiencs fomgiang placements - their passion for teaching truly
shines!
Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 6 of 1226

who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

CMSD Hosts Meet & Greet for Practicum Student Teachers

An invitation was extended to Practicum Student Teachers of University of Northern British Columbia (UNBC)
and University of British Columbia (UBC), who recently completed their school-based placements with Coast
Mountains School District, to join District Leadership Team members for a “Meet & Greet” held on Wednesday,
April 16 at the school district office in Terrace.

The Meet & Greet provided an informal opportunity for Practicum Students to meet with Superintendent Tracey
MacMillan, Directors of Instruction Phillip Barron & Julia Nieckarz, the Director and Manager of Human
Resources Kiran Bath & Kyla Magnusson, and Sheryl Edwards, UNBC Practicum Placement Coordinator - School
of Education. Information was shared on upcoming job positions, how to apply for jobs, mentorship
opportunities as well as answers to any questions. The District Leadership Team members took the opportunity
to congratulate the Practicum Students on achieving their Bachelor of Education degree — a huge achievement!

It was a great get-together where Practicum Students spoke about their positive experiences in Coast Mountains’
schools and their teaching career aspirations. We are hoping to welcome the Practicum Students to new
teaching positions for the upcoming school year! A group photo with the Meet & Greet attendees along with
individual presentations with the Practicum Students is shared below. A thank-you gift bag was presented to
each practicum student for their hard work, dedication and the meaningful impact they made during their school
placements with Coast Mountains School District.

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 7 of 12277
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

Provincial School Outreach Program

Provincial School Outreach (PSO) is a multi-disciplinary team of specialists who provide
in-person and virtual support to school districts across the province, including case

consultations, professional development sessions, and linking school and school district
PI'UViII[:iﬂ' staff to regional and provincial resources and services. The program prioritizes services
and support for school districts in rural and remote regions where unfilled vacancies of
c hoﬂl specialist personnel may be adversely impacting service delivery to students.

uutreac PSO is a program sponsored by the Ministry of

Education and Child Care that consists of specialist

personnel who serve as outreach consultants to provide in-person and virtual

support to students, classrooms, schools, and school districts across British

Columbia. The program is funded by the Government of British Columbia and

the program is hosted by the North Vancouver School District (SD44). Vince
White is the Director of Provincial School Outreach based at SD44.

Provincial School Outreach provides its supports and services in coordination _
with other provincial outreach and resource programs that are specializedina . S —

wide range of areas that are integral to supporting student success. Julia Nieckarz, Director of Instruction
Inclusive Education (1) is pictured with
Recently, Coast Mountains School District was fortunate to have Vince attend g"”hce ‘,/the' D"’e;fo(')"f;“; P’?V’”Cr’;?’

) ) ) a2 n . choo utreac r) following his
the Principals & Vice Principals Forum held on April 3 at the Northwest Trades presentation on the Provincial School
& Employment Training Centre. Vince shared his knowledge on Inclusive Outreach program at the Principals &
Education and balancing perspectives, real life and legislation. Vince is an Vice Principals Forum hetd April 3,

i ” ) 2025 at NTETC.
excellent presenter and provided many thought-provoking topics.

Julia Nieckarz (left back), Director of Instruction Inclusive Education Vince White (right back), Provincial School Outreach
welcomes and introduces Vince White (right back), Provincial School Director presents the administrator in-service on
Outreach Director to the Principals & Vice Principals Forum held on Behaviour Related Decision Making: Statutory and
April 3 in the NTETC Meeting Room. Contextual Frameworks for Consideration.

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 8 of 1228

who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’'msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

How Porcupine Gets Quills Discovery Activity

While attending the Principals & Vice Principals Forum held on Thursday, April 3 at the Northwest Trades &
Employment Centre, we learned of the hands-on student Discovery activity, “How Porcupine Gets Quills”, being
taught by Cory Redl, Discovery/Dual Credit Teacher for Janine Hamming’s Grade

3 Class of Thornhill Pri School. vy
s ill Primary Schoo r'-- o é ‘%7
Cory shared that he adapted this Discovery activity from the popular Hedgehog : ﬁ.ﬁ% y =
24V b %

activity that involves the same applied design, skills and technologies (ADST), but ?QE
changing the story to a porcupine allows him to incorporate Indigenous culture
and storytelling. There are no hedgehogs in North America, but the porcupine can
be found in every Canadian province. Evidence of their contributions to people A ;
and the land can be seen and heard in Indigenous stories all over Turtle Island. e ————

This Discovery activity combines the telling of a seasonal Michif (Métis) story of how the porcupine got its quills,
with an ADST woodworking activity where students use a hammer and nails to give a porcupine its quills. In
addition to the one-hour activity, participating teachers are provided with optional extension activities that can
be done in the classroom.

Cory shared the following comments he has received from teachers of the ten Grade 3-4 classes in the school
district that have participated in the Discovery activity this spring.

= “My students were so engaged. They talked about the activities all of the following day. The cultural connections were
very impactful. Trades are not a common visit especially for little ones, we loved the visit.”

s “lhave never participated in any other program/activity that held the attention of 22 Grade 3 students prior to this activity.
Hands down amazing experience for each student and myself. It was uplifting to watch my students create and learn
hands-on skills. would love to do more of these activities in the future. This is what | would call “real” learning.”

= “This Discovery program provides the resources and knowledge keeper (expert tradesperson) to give students the opportunity
to apply their skills and knowledge in a different way. Students feel a great deal of success when doing hands-on learning and is
an essential life skill. Without these resources and experts being provided by this grant, the responsibility to acquire such things
is on the teacher and most teachers aren't expert tradespeople. Bottom line is students in CMSD won't have these valuable
opportunities if this program ceases to exist."

Cory Red!, NTETC
Discovery/Dual Credit
Teacher is pictured
teaching the Grade 3 Class
of Thornhill Primary School
a Discovery hands-on
activity, How Porcupine
Gets Quills, that
incorporates Indigenous
culture and storytelling for
the students’ learnings.

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 90f1229
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

Zone01 Regional Robotics Competition held April 14

The Zone01 Regional Robotics Competition was held for a full day at
Mount Elizabeth Middle/Secondary School (MEMSS) in Kitimat on
Monday, April 14. Students from nine different schools competed in
three different events, across two age groups.

Most schools had 5-7 teams of students working with two different-
Nl el 3N purposed robots. It's estimated that 150 students and coaches
= = SN ~~ participated. Coast Mountains School District fielded three Kitimat
schools and three Terrace schools. Rio Tinto is the partner host with Zone01 Robotics and kindly provided judges
and a large pizza lunch for everyone. Parents and other classes were invited to watch the day's events.

The three robot challenges were:

1. Sumo - build and code a robot capable of finding and
pushing out an opponent,

2. Gemstone - build and code a robot capable of collecting
gems (some hidden under obstacles) while trying to solve
the last-minute surprise rule, and

3. Pollinator - build and code a robot capable of dropping
pollen blocks into flowers of different heights while
scanning for their location.

MEMSS’ Robotics Teacher, Kim Wilkinson has been the organizer and host of the regional competition for five
years running.

The overall Gemstone winning team from MEMSS has earned the opportunity to attend the Zone01 National
Robotics Competition held in Montreal in May.

Best wishes are
extended to the
MEMSS
Gemstone Team
for a great
experience and
success at the
Robotics
Competition in
Montreal in
May!

Have fun and

happy coding! N e

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 10 of 13 0
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

NTETC Happenings during the Month of April

Hazelton Tour
On April 11, Stephanie Muldoe, Career Life Connections/Careers Coordinator accompanied 18 students from
Hazelton Secondary School on a tour of the Piping Industry College (PIC) at the Northwest Trades &
Employment Centre (NTETC), Coast Mountain College, and the University of Northern British Columbia
(UNBC) campus. Throughout the day, students explored a range of training facilities focused on trades,
healthcare, and social work. They also had the chance to visit the
campus salon, dormitories, library, and enjoyed lunch at the Coast
Mountain College cafeteria. Many thanks to volunteer, Jordan
Muldoe who accompanied the group and drove the bus!

Trades SAMPLER in Stewart

A Trades SAMPLER program was launched at Bear Valley School in
Stewart on April 14, giving students hands-on exposure to a variety
of career paths including Carpentry, Culinary Arts, Electrical,
Hairstyling, Cement, Heavy Duty, Scaffolding, Piping, and
Ironworking.

This valuable opportunity was made possible through the |-——'-—-;' = : :
collaboration and support of the Piping Industry College and Coast ﬁZfz’avaé’yeénscé’u"i’e s;”dl?gatf;nT"g’;b:r'"bgj;'l; ‘

Mountain College, whose partnership brought the program to life. display the bench they created during the
Carpentry Trades Sampler held on April 14. Well

Adventures in Health Care Interviews done! |
During the week of April 14-17, the Rotary Club conducted interviews with students from across the district
for a chance to participate in the Adventures in Health Care program. This unique opportunity is made
possible through a strong partnership between the local Rotary Clubs, UNBC, Coast Mountain College
(CMTN), Coast Mountains School District 82, and Northern Health. Selected students will spend three days
(May 13-15) in Terrace, engaging in hands-on experiences at CMTN, UNBC, Cedar Coast Dental, and the new
Ksyen Regional Hospital. Throughout the program, students will have the chance to explore health care

careers and connect directly with professionals in the field.

Skills Canada Competition in Abbotsford

On April 16, Kim Hoekstra, District Careers Coordinator
accompanied four students from our school district to
Abbotsford, where they proudly represented us at the Skills
Canada Competition. This incredible opportunity was
made possible through our continued partnership with
Coast Mountain College.

Trades SAMPLER with PIC in Terrace
Currently, four students from Parkside Secondary School

are par‘umpatmg inthe Trades SAMPLER prOgram at NTETC. CMSD students, Thomas Humchitt, Dylan Louttit, Sydney
. Schulmeister & Parker Graham proudly represented CMSD at
Additionally, two students who graduated last year from the Skills Canada Competition held in Abbotsford on April 16.
Mount Elizabeth Midd[e/secondary School (MEMSS) are Graduated students Aaron Barks, Chad Bouvier & Tephilla |
. . . Finstad and Chaperones/instructors Bruce Neid & Tamara |
commuting daily to take part in the program. Edwald (CMTN) & Kim Hoekstra (CMSD) accompanied and

supported the students. Anincredible and amazing experience! ‘

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 110f137]
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.



Superintendent’s Report to the Board
April 2025

Caledonia Travel Club’s The Grand Tour of Italy

The Caledonia Travel Club grew from a chance siting of an Education First (EF) booth promoting the 100th
Anniversary Tour of Vimy Ridge at a conference in Vancouver. That developed into the first trip in 2017 titled
"Canada and the World Wars". Since then, the Caledonia Travel Club have toured "The Ancient
Mediterranean"”, "The British Isles" and "The Grand Tour of Itaty". Travel happens every two years and is open
to any Caledonia student at the time of travel. Registration is available nearly two years prior to the travel date
to spread out the cost of the trip.

The Grand Tour of ltaly took place during Spring Break 2025. The group, comprised of forty students and six
chaperones flew to Milan, travelled the length of italy, and flew home from Rome. Over the course of the
twelve days, the Caledonia Travel Club visited Milan, Verona, Venice, Florence, Pisa, Assisi, Sorrento, Capri,
Naples and Rome. Photo highlights below include the gondola ride in Venice, the Leaning Tower of Pisa,
exploring Assisi, the boat tour of Capri, and, of course, the Colosseum and the Vatican where Indigenous
students taking part in the tour wore their regalia for the Vatican walk-through ... empowering reconciliation!

Caledonia Travel Club’s “The Grand Tour of ltaly”
during Spring 2025 was an amazing trip with 40

students and 6 chaperones. It was a jam-packed
12-day tour which began in Milan and wound its

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Métis and Inuit learners and their caregivers Page 12 of 13 2
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts'msyen Peoples.



g% oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #9.

Action: X Information:
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date: April 30, 2025
Topic: Indigenous Education Report — March/April 2025

Background/Discussion:

Attached for reference is the Indigenous Education Report for presentation at the April 30, 2025
Regular Board Meeting as prepared by Superintendent Tracey MacMillan.

A monthly Indigenous Education Report will be provided for inclusion in the agenda package for
Regular Board Meetings.

Recommended Action:

THAT the Board receive for information the Indigenous Education Report for March/April 2025.

Presented by: Superintendent of Schools

33



i i Po———r
Indigenous Education Report
March/April 2025 IN THIS ISSUE:

COAST MOUNTAINS
SCHOOL O1STRICT 82

Artist Alexander Erickson
Visits Caledonia

This Issue highlights events and projects funded through the Sustainable Harvesting &
1.31 Enhancement Proposals, Elders Knowledge Holder BrunitiakingaiCatedonis
g Skeena Grade 9’s Join
Program and the work of the Indigenous Support Workers. B e e
Cultural Engagement at
Gratitude Nechako, Skeena, and
Cassie Hall
. Kitwanga Elementary
Thank you to all Elders, Knowledge Holders, Indigenous Visits Hazelton
Support Workers (ISWs), teachers, and community Land-Based Learning &
: . . . Drum making at Hazelton
partners who continue to guide and inspire the learners. Secondary
Your efforts are helping to nurture identity, culture, and “Back to the Land”
pride. Program Highlights
Thornhilt Primary visits
KST
Artist Alexander Erickson Inspires Caledonia Art Jenine Klein -Welcome
Students.

In February, Caledonia Secondary had the honour of welcoming
artist Alexander Erickson. Over several class sessions,
Alexander shared his personal journey with art and how it
connects to his identity and culture.

He introduced students to the fundamental forms of Northwest Coast
design, guiding them through the process of creating crest head designs
and analyzing works by master artists. His teaching, grounded in
cultural tradition and personal experience, left an impression on the
students.

“This was such a great gift to leave the students with.” Collette Stewart

Learning Northwest Coast Design

=

Page 10f12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.

34



Land-Based and Cultural Learning at Caledonia Secondary

Sustainable Harvesting Workshop
Led by Knowledge Holder Tegan Anaka, students learned about ethical and sustainable trapping from an Indigenous perspective.
“Some Indigenous students found their voice for the first time during this workshop. Tegan shared so much

knowledge. —truly excellent.” Stephanie Louie Indigenous Support Worker.

Drum Making with Gerald Brown

Students explored the cultural significance of traditional drum making,
supported by Indigenous Support Worker Desiree Quock.

Skeena Grade 9’s Join the Caledonia Drum Group
Supported by ISWs Martha Watts, Stephanie Louie,
Sheila Morgan, and Desiree Quock, this new

initiative supports a smoother transition to

high school for Grade 9 students.

“Seeing one of the youth drum for the first time—
seeing their joy and comfort afterward—

was incredibly heartwarming.” - Martha Watts

Page 2 of 12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a and Ts'msyen Peoples.

35



Caledonia's Indigenous Education Activities: Empowering Learners Through Cultural
Connections

Cultural Week with Dr. Kevin Lewis and Family: Reconciliation in Action

From March 31 to April 3, the Kermode
Friendship Society’s Aboriginal Child and Youth
Mental Health team hosted a meaningful Cultural Week, guided by Dr. Kevin Lewis
and his family. Learners from Caledonia, Parkside, and Skeena had the
opportunity to participate in this enriching experience. Students engaged in
traditional practices including the Sweat Lodge Ceremony, Pipe Ceremony, and
hide tanning. These hands-on experiences offered powerful teachings and
deepened cultural understanding. The Indigenous Education team at Caledonia
extends heartfelt thanks to Keith Axelson (Caledonia Principal), Tracey MacMillan
{(Superintendent) and the Inter-Tribal Education Committee for their generous
support and commitment to reconciliation through meaningful cultural
connections.

Empowering Youth: Boundaries and Knowing Your Rights Workshop

On April 3, 2025, Indigenous support staff partnered
with Aboriginal Child and Youth Mental Health to host
Sue Brown, Director of Advocacy at Justice for Girls, for
an impactful workshop focused on setting boundaries
and understanding one’s rights. Caledonia brought a
group of girls to attend the session, which proved to be
both empowering and transformative. Since
participating, staff have observed a noticeable shift—
these students are beginning to open up and show a
readiness to begin healing from past traumas. The
workshop also highlighted the importance of knowing
that healing looks different for everyone. Students came
away with a deeper understanding that support is
available in many forms, and that healing is not a linear
journey.

Page 3 of 12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a and Ts'msyen Peoples. 3 6



Justice for Girls Workshop Series: Understanding Genocidal Practices in Canada

On Aprit 2, 2025, Indigenous support staff, in collaboration with
Caledonia’s Law 12, Genocide Studies 11/12, and BC First
Peopies 11/12 classes, welcomed Sue Brown, Director of
Advocacy at Justice for Girls. This event marked the beginning of a
three-part workshop series focused on exploring genocidal
practices within Canada and pathways toward resolution and
justice. The first session concentrated on the Indian Act, policing,
and human rights. Students engaged in critical conversations
about the historical and ongoing impacts of colonial systems,
while also learning about the legal frameworks that continue to
shape Indigenous experiences today. This powerful learning
opportunity is part of a broader effort to educate and empower
youth, while promoting truth, awareness, and reconciliation in the
school community.

Sacred Fire Ceremony: Honouring, Healing, and
Letting Go

On April 16, Caledonia’s Indigenous Education team led a Sacred Fire
Ceremony, creating a safe and meaningful space for learners to reflect
and release. Students were invited to write letters to loved ones who
are no longer in their lives, or to express feelings about situations they
felt ready to move on from. These letters were then offered to the fire as
part of the healing process. The day began with a traditional meal
prepared by ISW Sheila Morgan, featuring fish, rice, and seaweed. This
was followed by letter writing, and the ceremonial burning of the

letters.

March and April have been rich with
culturat learning and emotionat growth.
As we look ahead to more events inthe
coming months, we would like to
extend our sincere thanks to administrator Keith Axelson for his continued support. His
commitment has helped us uphold the Truth and Reconciliation Commission’s Call to
Action #63-iii: “Building student capacity for intercultural understanding, empathy, and
mutual respect.”

Reconciliation

Natalie, Mason and Casey Russell walk through the Vatican Museum. The siblings
travelled to ltaly with the Caledonia Travel Club.

Note: Of the 40 students who went to Italy, 18 were indigenous. Mason has already
registered for the Portugal / Spain trip for 2027.

,%CL@-\—

Page 4 of 12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’msyen Peoples.

37



Nechako Elementary: Fried Bread & Young Entrepreneur Day

ISW Kelsy Carlow supports students in hands-on learning and cultural sharing

through food preparation and entrepreneurial skills.

Skeena Middle School: Sewing & Cedar Roses

ISW’s Martha Watts and Brandi Davis taught students how to sew scrunchies
and craft cedar roses—an engaging way to build skills and cultural connection.

Cassie Hall Drum Group Sessions

Supported by Kendra LeBlond, ISWs Krystal Conway, and Drieanne Porter.

“An incredible opportunity that students eagerly look forward to.
Even students with behavioral challenges are thriving in these sessions.” - Kendra LeBlond

Page 50f12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts'msyen Peoples. 3 8



Kitwanga Elementary Tour to the Hazelton’s/Upper Skeena Recreation

Centre/Library/Historic Sternwheeler

On behalf of everyone at Kitwanga Elementary School, | just wanted to extend a heartfelt
thank you! The students had an incredible time touring the recreation center, seeing the
Michelle Stoney murals, and experiencing skating—many for the very first time. In fact, it
was the first time skating for thirty of the students, and they did an amazing job! They fell,
got back up, and kept trying with huge smiles on their faces.

They were also really intrigued by the Hands of History signs; we learned about the local
history and culture. Many of them have driven past these signs countless times but have
never stopped to read or learn more about them. They sparked curiosity and great
conversations.

We are so grateful for your support and for offering the students such a wonderful and
memorable opportunity. Kassia Nameth (Principal, Kitwanga Elementary)

Page 6 of 12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a and Ts’'msyen Peoples.

39



Hazelton Secondary School — knowledge Holder Jordan Muldoe
Jordan Muldoe led sessions in traditional land-based practices such as trapping and hunting, sharing

cultural knowledge and community teachings.

Ms. Carol Bob’s Grade 8 class

Integrated drum making into the math curriculum, supported by Knowledge Holder Dr. Jane Smith.

Page 7 of 12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a and Ts'msyen Peoples.



Hazelton Secondary School Back to the Land Program _

"Back to the Land" Program - March Highlights Throughout the latest trips,
learners engaged in hands-

on, land-based learning and
through our team'’s "Back to the Land" program. demonstrated growing
proficiency in a wide range
i . . . . of cuitural and survival
Jordan Muldoe, Patience Muldoe, and the Inter-Tribal Education Committee for their skills, including:

{ would like to take a moment to highlight the incredible work carried out this month

A special thank you to Stephanie Muldoe, Ryan Samson, Zach Rychlo, Brianna Wright,

invaluable guidance and support in delivering this month’s programming.
“We are proud of the meaningful learning taking place and the confidence, resilience,

and cultural connection being nurtured through this program.” Taylor Murell

Cedar gathering
Trapping

GPS navigation
Territory boundary
knowledge

Land use permission
protocols

Survival techniques
Fire building
(individual and
collaborative)

Map reading

Terrain analysis

Snowshoeing

Environmental
stewardship

Plant identification
Risk assessment
Cultural awareness

Cultural and outdoor
trip planning

Emergency
preparedness

Shelter construction
(individual and group)
Cooking and team
cooking skills

Circte talks focused
on gratitude,
reflection, and mutual
support

Page 8 of 12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a and Ts'msyen Peoples. 4 1



Thornhill Primary Grade 3 — K5T Field Trip

The Grade 3 students of Thornhill Primary, along with their teachers and
IESW Liz Dowse, had the incredible opportunity to participate in hands-
on learning with members of Kitselas Five Tier (K5T).

At Thornhill Primary, all students learn about the Ts’msyen Seasonal
Rounds. March is Ha’lilaxsixwah — the time of the eulachon. In class,
students explore harvesting and
preservation practices through stories,
texts, and videos. Their field trip to
Kulspai brought these lessons to life.

During the visit, students had the chance to work directly with the
fish. They were shown how to string eulachon by sliding one fish’s
head through the gill of another and then opening the gill of the
second to “lock” them together. They were fascinated by the
smokehouse filled with hanging fish and learned how it is heated.
Students also explored the air-drying area and discovered the
cultural significance of positioning the fish heads upriver — a sign of respect for the eulachon’s
journey.

Thornhill Primary extends heartfelt thanks to K5T for sharing their knowledge and creating such a
meaningful experience. Most importantly, the students had an amazing time!

Page 9 0of12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a and Ts'msyen Peoples. 4 2



We are pleased to announce that Jenine Klein has been hired for the temporary Indigenous
Language and Culture Teacher position.

A warm welcome to Jenine. She brings a wealth of knowledge and a strong
commitment to Indigenous education. We look forward to the contributions
she will make in supporting language revitalization and cultural learning
within the primary and elementary schools.

Culture and

Language Lessons ,
Language Topics

« numbers
My name is Jenine Klein, and .
Luu-aamhl goodiy {Y'm happy) « Ani NO'S
be teaching Culture and .
Language again at CMSD 82. | b gre et' ngs
learned to speak with Sim'oogit
Naaws Sm'algyax the Ts'msyen. ° co ' ours
Our focus will be introducing the
basics in Primary and * seosons
Elementary students. " weather

o 1
Sm’algyax
Sm = impotant  algyax =talk:speak
1 ; y .
here are three dialects in e S0 eREAREREAIHA o

Northwest BC. . ) .
First Voices Sm'algyax below Any questions about scheduling

Ts'msyen Nisga’a Gitsenimx https:/iwww.firstvoices.com/smalgyax or prograning please email me
jenineklein@cmsd.be.ca

Page 10 of 12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a and Ts’'msyen Peoples.



Elder/Knowledge Holder Role Model Program
Reviewed and Approved by the Inter-Tribal Education Committee

& Indigenous Education Department

School

Project

Knowledge Keeper/Elder

Caledonia Secondary

Firekeeper Training
Sweat lodge

Sam Martin

Cassie Hall Elementary

Drum and Dance (monthly)

Vivian Carlick,

Cedar Basket Weaving Chris Peal
Roxanne Woods
Jenine Klein
Julie Bradford
Hazelton Secondary Land Knowledge Plants and Ross McRae
Medicine
New Hazelton Elementary Land based learning about Kitty Mowatt

frogs, learn about the Frog
clan, crests, cultural history,
and stories.

Kildala Elementary

On the Land Plant
Identification

Dustin Gaucher

Thornhill Primary

Oral Storytelling

Shalane Pauls

Page 11 of 12

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional tands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts’'msyen Peoples.

44



1.31 Indigenous Targeted Funded Projects — March/April 2025

Reviewed and Approved by the Inter-Tribal Education Committee
& Indigenous Education Department
Caledonia Secondary School:

Ceremony Week with Kermode Friendship Centre

Hazelton Secondary School:

Field Trip to Nisga’a Territory

Making of Crests for School

Indigenous Art Class

Sparkle Project/Personal Hygiene

Outdoor Education/Land Knowledge Plants and Medicine

Cottonwood Balm Salve Project

New Hazelton Elementary School:

+  Traditional Harvest and Canning Practices

Cassie Hall:

Herring Eggs for Seasonal Rounds teachings

Kitimat City High:

Nation2Nation Women’s Gathering

Coast Mountains School District is in service to diverse First Nations, Metis, Inuit learners and their caregivers
who live, learn and play on the traditional lands of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga’a and Ts'msyen Peoples.

Page 12 of 12

45



g B’ oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #10.1.1

Action: X Information:
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date: April 30, 2025
Topic: Minutes of the Business Committee Meeting, April 9, 2025

Background/Discussion:

Minutes as attached.

Recommended Action:

THAT the minutes of the Business Committee Meeting held April 9, 2025 be
received for information.

Presented by: Secretary Treasurer

46



a ; oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

BUSINESS COMMITTEE MEETING

Wednesday, April 9, 2025 - 10:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.
Virtual via Zoom

Committee Members:

Trustee Margaret Warcup (Acting as Chair
for Ed Harrison)

Ginger Fuller, Secretary Treasurer

Recording Secretary:
Lindsay Harder, Executive Assistant

Guests:

Kiran Bath, Director of Human Resources
Robert Schibli, Director of Facility Services
Trustee Margaret Warcup

MEETING MINUTES

Items

Action

The meeting was chaired by Trustee Margaret Warcup and called to order at 10:30 a.m. Trustee Harrison acknowledged the school district's
business being conducted on the traditional and unceded territories of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a, and Ts'msyen Peoples, and the honour

to work with their children and privilege to live on their fand.

1. Previous Meeting Minutes
- February 12, 2025

1. The minutes of the previous Business Committee Meeting held on
February 12, 2025 were accepted as presented.

2. Human Resources
2.1 Grievance Update -~ CMTF & CUPE

3. Facilities/Transportation/OH&S
3.1 Monthly Facilities Report, April 2025

2.1 Director Bath provided a grievance update refating to the Coast
Mountain Teachers' Federation (CMTF) and the Canadian Union of
Public Employees Union (CUPE), Local 2052. CUPE has two
grievances. CMTF current numbers are eight-Step 1, one-Step 2
grievances, and five-Step 3 grievance.

Information only; no action required.

3.1 Director Schibli provided an update of recent work at school sites
during Spring Break. The District received a Capital Response letter
from the Ministry of Infrastructure confirming funding for roof
projects at Thornhill Primary and Nechako Elementary. Spring
Break was productive, with improvements including new flooring at
Cassie Hall, HVAC upgrades at Mount Elizabeth, and completed
painting projects throughout various facilities.

Director Schibli provided staffing updates, noting the successful
hiring of two local staff members in Kitimat for the carpenter and
grounds worker positions. For the Hazelton area, a temporary
grounds worker has been hired to provide coverage. Facilities are
currently reviewing applications for summer student labourers in all
communities.

Information only; no action required.

April 9, 2025 Business Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 10of2




Ci_f'foast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

3.2 District Joint OH&S Committee Meeting Minutes — 3.2

Scheduled February 27, 2025

Secretary Treasurer provided the District Joint OH&S Committee
Meeting Minutes of February 27, 2025.

4, Board Representations

4.1 BCPSEA 4.1 No Report

4.2 BCSTA 4.2 No Report
5. Outstanding Items from Previous Meeting 5. There were no outstanding items from the previous meeting.
6. Finances

6.1 Monthly Financial Statements, February 2025 6.1

6.2 Ministry of Education Estimated Operating Grants 6.2

2025/26 Announcement

6.3 Ministry of Education Response to Annual Five-Year | 6.3
Capital Plan Submission 2025/26 & Capital Bylaw

2025/26-CPSD82-01

Secretary Treasurer Fuller spoke to the February 28, 2025 Monthly
Financial Statements, there were no areas of concern.
Information only; no action required.

Secretary Treasurer Fuller shared the Ministry of Education and Child
Care Estimated Operating Grants 2025/26 Announcement. On
March 14, 2025 the 2025/26 estimated operating grants for all 60
boards of education was announced. School district allocations are
based on projected enrolments for the 2025/26 school year.

Action: Forward for information the Ministry of Education and
Child Care Estimated Operating Grants 2025/26 Announcement
to the next Regular Board Meeting on April 30, 2025.

Secretary Treasurer Fuller spoke to the Ministry of Education and
Child Care Response to the Annual Five-Year Capital Plan
Submission 2025/26 & Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD82-01. As
outlined in the Ministry’s March 25, 2025 letter, our district will receive
funding support for Minor Capital Projects under the School
Enhancement Program (SEP), noting that the design process,
tender, and construction of the projects must be completed by
March 31, 2026.

Action: Forward for information the Ministry of Education and
Child Care Response to the Annual Five-Year Capital Plan
Submission 2025/26 & and forward with the recommendation
that the Board pass and adopt the Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-
CPSD82-01 to the next Regular Board Meeting on April 30, 2025.

8. Next Meeting 8.

The next Business Committee Meeting is scheduled on Wednesday,
May 14, 2025, from 10:30 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:02 a.m.

48

April 9, 2025 Business Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 2 of 2




g ; oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #10.1.2

Action: X Information:
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date:  April 30, 2025
Topic: Ministry Estimated Operating Grants 2025/2026 Announcement

Background/Discussion:

The Ministry of Education and Child Care's Resource Management Division announced on March
14, 2025 the 2025/26 Estimated Operating Grants for all 60 Boards of Educations.

Attached is the 2025/26 Estimated Operating Grants Overview, an Overview of the 2025/26
Operating Grant Allocation Formula, and the Summary of 2025/26 Preliminary Operating Grant
Announcement.

The total school district allocations are based on projected enrolments provided by Boards of
Education for the 2025/26 school year and generate in provincial preliminary operating grants of
$7.251 billion.

The operating grant block is projected to grow by $123.7 million to over $7.2 billion in 2025/26.
The increase is the result of the addition of $76.5 million in labour settlement funding plus estimated
enrolment growth totalling $47.2 million. The Ministry is increasing the basic per-student allocation
for standard, alternate and continuing education schools by 1.1% for 2025/26.

Operating grants will be recalculated in the fall of 2025, after the September 29, 2025 enrolment is
confirmed. The Operating Grant allocation will again be adjusted subsequent to the February and
May 2026 continuing education and online learning enrolment counts. Funding will also be
adjusted in February 2026 for any growth in inclusive education enroliment.

The Business Committee reviewed the Ministry's Estimated Operating Grants 2025/26
announcement at its April 9, 205 meeting and forwards to the Board for information.

Recommended Action:

THAT the Board receive the Ministry of Education’s Estimated Operating Grants 2025/26
announcement as presented for information.

Presented by: Secretary Treasurer

49



0S

Estimated Operating Grants Overview - 2025/26 School Year

September 2025 Enrolment Count

School District 82 {Coast Mountains)

July 2025 Enrolment Count

School-Age Funding Funding
Enrolment Level Funding Total Suppl Enrolment Level Funding Total Supplemeant]
Standard (Regular) Schools 4,070.0000 $9,015 $36,681,050| Summer Learning Grade 1-7 0 $260 %0
Continuing Education 0.0000 $9,015 50 Summer Learning Grade 8-9 0 $260 50
Alternate Schools 133.0000 $9,015 $1,198,985 Summer Learning Grade 10-12 4} $510 $0
Onling Learning 3.0000 $7,280 $21,840 IS i Learning Funding $0
Home Schooling 29 5250 $7.250 lCmss~Enroime nt, Grade 8and 9 0 $510 50
Course Challenges 0 $282 30 Summer Learning, Total 30
Total Enrol Based Funding (September) 4,206.0000 $37,918,135
February 2026 Enrolment Count
Total Enral, Funding Funding
Change Level Funding Total Suppl Enrolment Level Funding Total Supplement
1% to 4% Enrolment Decline 48,8125 £4,508 50 School-Age FTE - Continuing Education 0.0000 $9,015 $0
455+ Enrolment Decline $6,761 S0 Adult FTE - Continuing Education 0.0000 %5,755 $0
Signiticant C tative Decline [7%+) 5.7500 $4,508 £0| K-Gr 9 School-Age FTE - Online Learning 0.0000 $3,640 $0
Supplement for Enrolment Decline 50 Gr 10-12 School-Age FTE - Online Learning 30.0000 $7,280 $218,400|
Adult FTE - Online Learning 0.0000 $5,755 30
Funding Total
Iment Level Funding P Level 1 Inclusive Education Enrolment Growth 4} $25,650 $0
Level 1 Inclusive Education 3 $51,300 $153.900 Level 2 Inclusive Education Enrolment Growth 1] $12,170 ]
Level 2 inclusive Education 206 $24,340 §5,014,040 Level 3 Inclusive Education E Growth 0 56,150 50
Level 3 Inclusive Education 10 £12,300 $123,000]
English Language Learning 400 $1,815 £728,000 Newcomer Refugees 0.0000 $4,508 50
Indigenous Education 1,919 $1,7%0 53,435,010 ELL Sugp - Newcomer Refug 0 $908 30
[Adult Education 0.0000 85,755 30 February 2026 Enrolment Count, Total $218,400
|Equity of Oppartunity Supplement $436,137
‘Supplemunt for Unique Student Needs $9,888,087 026 0
Funding Total
Funding Enrolment Level Funding L
Variance from Provincial Average $490 School-Age FTE - Continuing Education 0.0000 $9,015 $0
Estimated Number of Educators 233.667 $114,497 L\dult FTE - Continuing Education 0.0000 $5,755 50
Funding Total ¥-Gr 8 School-Age FTE - Online Learning 0.0000 $2,427 $0
Enrolment Level Funding Suppl Gr 10-12 School-Age FTE - Online Learning 0.0000 $7,280 %0
FTE Distribution 4,206.0000 $180.33 STSa.dESI Adult FTE - Online Learning 0.0000 45,755 $0)
Supplement for Salary Differentlal $872,965 May 2026 Enrolment Count, Total 0|
Indigenous Education Councils 5192.950
Supplement for Unlque Geographic Factors $9,730,314
Funding Protection $0
September 2025 Enrolment Count, Tatal $58,447,816 Estimated 2025/26 Operating Grant from Indigenous Services Canada 45,775,809
| [Esti { 2025/26 Operating Grant from Ministry of Education and Child Care $53,083,457
March 2025



TG

Overview of the 20%5/26 Operating Grant Allocation Formula

Allocation of the Total Operating Block by Enrolment Count
(2025/26 Estimated as at March 2025)

$8,000 M

$7,146 M

$7,000 M

$6,000 M

$5,000 M

$4,000 M

$3,000 M

$2,000 M

$1,000 M

$26 M $38 M $17 M

July September February May

Basic Allocation
74% Common per student amount for every FTE student enrolled by school type.
:::::;:dthe Standard School $9,015 per school age FTE
Basic Alternate School i _$91015_ per school age FTE
Allocatlon Continuing Education $9,015 per school age FTE
o Online Leamning $7,280 per school age FTE
Unique Student
Additional per student funding to address uniqueness of district enrolment and support
additional programming. Includes Equity of Opportunity Supplement for children and youth in
18% care and students with mental health challenges
allocated to
recognize Level 1 Inclusive Education 551,300 per student o
::J:::t Level 2 Inclusive Education 524,3._40_p_er student
enrolment Level 3 Incluslve Education 512,300 per student = — =
_English/French L age Learning $1,815 perstudent
Indigenous Education $1_,790_per student - .
Adult Education 55 ?55 per FTE
—_— T
TR : 4l AT
E— _—
Small Community _For small schools_ located a distance away from the next nearest school
7% Low Enrolment _For districts with low total enrolment
allocated to Rural Factor Located some distance from Vancouver and the nearest large regional
recognize o ___population centre o
unique Climate Factor Operate schools in colder/warmer chmates, addltlonal heatlng or cooling
district ____Tequirements R
factors _Sparseness Factor _ Operate schoals that are spre_ad over a wide geographi gr_e_:-L
Student Location Factor  Based on population density o_fs_cl'um:_qmmunltles
Supplemental Student Level 1 and 2 inclusive education enrolment
Locatlan Factor B e ———— . e
Salary Differential Funding to districts that have higher average educator salaries
0.2% Funding Protection / Enrolment Decline
:(llff’fc::::em Funding Protection Funding to ensure that no district experiences a decline in operating grants

effects of _ i _ greater than 1,5% when compared to the previous s September
declining Enrolment Decline

Funding to districts experiencing enrolment decline of at least 1% when
_E!\rolment compared to the previous year

CSF Supplement
District recelves a 15% funding premium on aflocated funding.

All funding information estimated for the 2025/26 School Year



Preliminary 2025/26 Operating Grants

Summary of 2025/26 Preliminary Operating Grant Announcement

The operating grant block is projected to grow by $123.7 million to over $7.2 billion in 2025/26. The
increase is the result of the addition of $76.5 million in labour settlement funding plus estimated

enrolment growth totalling $47.2 million.

Per student funding rates have increased by an average of 1.2% as detailed in the table below.

Supplement 2025/26 2024/25 $ Change % Change
Rates Rates
Basic Allocation (Standard, Continuing $9,015 $8,915 $100 1.1%
Education and Alternate schools)
Basic Allocation (Online Learning) $7,280 $7,200 580 1.1%
inclusive Education — Level 1 $51,300 $50,730 $570 1.1%
Inclusive Education — Level 2 $24,340 $24,070 $270 1.1%
Inclusive Education — Level 3 $12,300 $12,160 $140 1.2%
English/French Language Learning $1,815 $1,795 $20 1.1%
Indigenous Education $1,790 $1,770 $20 1.1%
Adult Education $5,755 $5,690 $65 1.1%
Summer Learning (Grades 1-9) $260 $255 S5 2.0%
Summer Learning {Grades 10-12) $510 $505 S5 1.0%
Supplements that are provided based on a formula have also increased:

Supplement 2025/26 2024/25 $ Change % Change
Equity of Opportunity Supplement $28.0M $27.5M 50.5M 1.8%
Student Location Factor $106.6M $104.8M $1.8M 1.7%

Labour Settlement Funding

Labour settlement funding from the third and final year of the 2022 Shared Recovery Mandate that was
allocated as a special grant in 2024/25 has been rolled into the 2025/26 operating grant rates. This

includes:

e Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) for teachers and support staff ($53.0 million);

e Salary increases for administrators in leadership roles ($15.9 million); and

e Teachers’ professional development ($2.2 million; allocations to be announced in April 2025).

In addition, $5.5 million in labour settlement funding for extended health benefits plan standardization
and improvements for support staff from the 2014 and 2019 Provincial Framework Agreements has also
been allocated through the operating grant rates. This funding had previously been disbursed as annual
payments to districts.

March 2025 Page1of3

52



Preliminary 2025/26 Operating Grants

Enrolment Changes

School districts are estimating they will enrol 590,658 school-age FTE in September 2025, a slight
increase of 1,249 FTE (or 0.2%) over the September 2024 total. Twenty-six (26) districts are estimating
they will have increased enrolment in September 2025.

School districts are estimating slower or declining enrolment growth across the Unique Student Needs
funding categories, including a 3.1% increase in Level 2 students (+1,074) compared to 8.6% growth in
2024/25, and fewer Level 1 (-19), Level 3 (-87), ELL/FLL (-141) and Indigenous Education (-422) students.

Operating Grant Changes

Forty-five (45) districts are estimated to have increases to their operating grants for the upcoming
school year. The per student average, including all special grants, is an estimated $13,596 for 2025/26, a

44.2% increase from 2016/17.

Funding for students with L1, L2 & L3 disabilities or diverse abilities is projected to grow by $35.1
million, or 3.6%, from $975 million to just over $1.0 billion, as Level 2 enrolment continues to grow and

labour settlement funding is added.

Funding will be recalculated when actual enrolment is known in the September 2025 enroiment count.

Funding Protection/Enrolment Decline

A total of 13 districts are receiving an estimated total of $7.6 million in Funding Protection; this is more
than double the amount compared to 2024/25 ($3.3 million).

In 2025/26 it is estimated that 17 districts will receive $3.9 million from the Supplement for Enrolment
Decline, up from 16 districts and $2.2 million in 2024/25.

Special Grants
In addition to the operating grant block, the following amounts are being provided for school district
operations:

e Preliminary Classroom Enhancement Fund: $757.4 million

e Learning Improvement Fund: $25.0 million, unchanged

e  CommunityLINK: $60.4 million, unchanged

e Pay Equity: $50.9 million, unchanged

e Student Transportation Fund: $15.4 million, unchanged

e Feeding Futures Fund: $71.5 million, unchanged

March 2025 Page2 of 3

53



Preliminary 2025/26 Operating Grants

Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF)

The Ministry is announcing CEF staffing funding at 100% of the amounts for the current school year to
facilitate budgeting and planning for the next school year. The overhead allocations will remain
unchanged for 2025/26.

Thus, the preliminary Classroom Enhancement Fund is set at $757.4 million:

o $710.6 million for CEF staffing
e $46.8 million for CEF overhead

As in previous years, the Ministry is not announcing CEF remedy funding at this time. CEF remedies will
be allocated based on school district reporting of actual remedies incurred in October 2025.

The process for applying for any additional funding for the 2025/26 CEF staffing allocations will be the
same as this year.

Indigenous Education Councils

Funding to support the implementation of Indigenous Education Councils (IECs) is increasing by
approximately $0.7 million to $6.4 million in 2025/26.

IEC allocations are detailed in Table 14 of the 2025/26 Estimated Operating Grants.

March 2025 Page 3 of 3

54



a_- B‘f oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #10.1.3

Action: X Information:
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date: April 30, 2025
Topic: Ministry Response to the Annual Five-Year Capital Plan Submission for

2025/2026 and Capital Bylaw No. 2025/2026-CPSD82-01

Background/Discussion:

Reference the attached letter dated March 25, 2025 from the Ministry of Infrastructure, Education and
Child Care’s Capital Branch in response to the Board’s Annual Five-Year Capital Plan submission for
2025/26 Major and Minor Capital Programs reviewed and adopted at the June 19, 2024 Regular Board
Meeting.

The Ministry reviewed all of the Five-Year Capital Plan submissions across the participating 60 school
districts to determine priorities for available capital funding while following the Ministry programs. As
outiined in the Ministry’s letter, Coast Mountains School District will receive funding support for Minor
Capital Projects under the School Enhancement Program (SEP) noting that the design process, tender
and construction of these projects must be completed by March 31, 2026.

The Ministry also instructs Boards of Education to adopt a single Capital Bylaw for its approved 2025/26
Five-Year Capital Plan (as attached), in accordance with Section 143 of the School Actto allow the school
district to access the Ministry Capital Portion and to receive the Certificates of Approval.

The Business Committee reviewed the aforementioned Ministry response and Capital Bylaw requirement
at its April 9, 2025 meeting and brings forward to the Board for bylaw adoption.

Recommended Action:

THAT the Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CP-SD82-01 (Capital Plan 2025/26) be read a first time the 30th
day of April 2025.

THAT the Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CP-SD82-01 (Capital Plan 2025/26) be read a second time the 30th
day of April 2025.

Unanimous consent is required fo proceed to third reading.

THAT the Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-CP-SD82-01 (Capital Plan 2025/26) be read a third time, passed
and adopted the 30th day of April 2025.

Presented by: Secretary Treasurer

55



BRITISH
COLUMBIA

March 25, 2025
Ref: 23223

To: Secretary-Treasurer and Superintendent
School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains)

Capital Plan Bylaw No. 2025/26-CPSD82-01

Re: Ministry Response to the Annual Five-Year Capital Plan Submission for 2025/26

This letter is in response to your School District’s 2025/26 Annual Five-Year Capital Plan
submissions for Major Capital Programs and Minor Capital Programs. This letter also contains
important information regarding your upcoming 2026/27 Annual Five-Year Capital Planning
submission. The following tables identify major capital projects that are supported to proceed to
the next stage of development and minor capital projects that are approved for funding and can
proceed to procurement.

On March 13, 2025, the Province introduced legislation that identifies country of origin
requirements for all procurements. What this means is U.S. bidders must be excluded, except in
certain circumstances, for all future procurements. The Ministry will have further conversations
with school districts as the tariff situation evolves and commit to working closely with you to
navigate this challenging situation.

MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS

Major capital consists of the following program areas:
e Seismic Mitigation Program (SMP)

Expansion Program (EXP)

Replacement Program (REP)

Site Acquisition Program (SAP)

Rural District Program (RDP)

A variety of emergent issues including a significant number of school fires, unprecedented
enrolment growth and a challenging fiscal environment have resulted in a limited ability to
advance major capital projects. As a result, there are no new major capital projects in your
School District that were supported to move forward at this time.

MINOR CAPITAL PROJECTS
The table below reflects approved minor capital projects for your School District in the following

program areas:
e School Enhancement Program (SEP)
e Food Infrastructure Program (FIP)
e Carbon Neutral Capital Program (CNCP)
e Building Envelope Program (BEP)

Ministry of Education and Child Care Capital Mailing Address: Location:
Infrastructure Branch PO Box 9151 Stn Prov Govt 5t Floar, 620 Superior St
Victoria BC V8W 9H1 Victoria BC V8V 1V2

Page | of 3

56



e Playground Equipment Program (PEP)

New projects for SEP, FIP, CNCP, BEP, PEP

Facility Name Program Project Description Amount [unded

by Ministry

$685,000

Thornhill Primary SEP - Roofing Upgrades

Nechako Elementary SEP - Roofing Upgrades $122,000

All projects are now to proceed to design, tender and construction, and to be completed by
March 31, 2026.

An Annual Programs Funding Agreement (APFA) accompanies this Capital Plan Response
Letter which outlines specific Ministry and Board-related obligations associated with the
approved Minor Capital projects for the 2025/26 fiscal year. Please email a signed/dated copy of
the Annual Programs Funding Agreement to the Ministry at CMB@gov.bc.ca

In accordance with Section 143 of the Schoo! Act, Boards of Education are required to adopt a
single Capital Bylaw (template can be found on the Ministry website) using the Capital Bylaw
Number provided at the beginning of this document, for the supported and/or approved 2025/26
Five-Year Capital Plan projects as identified in this letter. The Capital Bylaw must be adopted by
your Board and uploaded onto your School District's online MyCAPS portal in order for the
Ministry to issue Certificates of Approval. A step-by-step guide of this process is attached for
your reference.

Please contact Branch Director Michael Nyikes with any questions regarding Minor Capital
projects.

2026/27 ANNUAL FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL PLAN SUBMISSIONS
Capital Plan Instructions for the 2026/27 Annual Five-Year Capital Plan submission process will
be available on the Ministry’s capital planning website in early April.

School districts’ capital plan submission deadlines for the 2026/27 fiscal year are:
e June 30,2025
o Major Capital Programs (SMP, EXP, REP, RDP, SAP)
e September 30, 2025
o Minor Capital Programs (SEP, CNCP, PEP, BEP, BUS)
e October 1, 2025
o Minor Capital Programs (FIP)

Additionally, the Annual Facility Grant (AFG) project requests for the 2025/26 fiscal year are to
be submitted using the MyCAPS portal, on or before May 16, 2025. The 2025/26 AFG
Allocation Table will be available on the Ministry’s capital planning website in early April.

Page 2 of 3

57



The Ministry recommends school districts discuss draft versions of their intended capital projects
and Annual Facility Grant project requests with minor capital staff in advance of submission
deadlines.

The staggered deadlines are intended to provide the Ministry with input required to initiate

planning for the next budget cycle, while enabling school districts additional time and flexibility
to plan over the summer.

Sincerely,

Damien Crowell, Executive Director
Education and Child Care Capital Branch

Ministry of Infrastructure

pc: Geoff Croshaw, Director, Major Capital Projects, Education and Child Care Capital
Branch
Michael Nyikes, Director, Minor Capital Projects, Education and Child Care Capital
Branch

Page 3 of 3

58



CAPITAL BYLAW NO. 2025/26-CPSD82-01
CAPITAL PLAN 2025/26

WHEREAS in accordance with section 142 of the School Act, the Board of Education of School District No. 82
(Coast Mountains) (hereinafter called the “Board”) has submitted a capital plan to the Minister of Education and
Child Care (hereinafter called the "Minister") and the Minister has approved the capital plan or has approved a
capital plan with modifications,

NOW THEREFORE in accordance with section 143 of the School Act, the Board has prepared this Capital Bylaw
and agrees to do the following: &

(a)  Authorize the Secretary-Treasurer to execute a capital project funcjif;g';f‘ reement(s) related to the capital
project(s) contemplated by the capital plan or the capital plan with medifications;

(b)  Upon ministerial approval to proceed, commence the capital prf:ject(s) énﬂ'-‘p{pceed diligently and use
its best efforts to complete each capital project substantially as directed by the Minister;

(c) Observe and comply with any order, regulation, or-poliby of the Minister as may l_:i‘_e-applicable to the
Board or the capital project(s); and, 4 -

(d) Maintain proper books of account, and other informationand.documents with respect to the affairs of the
capital project(s), as may be prescribed by the Minister.

NOW THEREFORE the Board enacts as follows:

1. The Capital Bylaw of the Board for the 2025/26 Capital Planas approved by the Minister, to include the
supported capital project(s) specified in the letter addressed to the Secretary-Treasurer and
Superintendent, dated March 25, 2025, is hereby adopted.

2. This Capital Bylaw may be cited.as School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains) Capital Bylaw No. 2025/26-
CPSD82-01.

READ A FIRST TIME THE 30TH DAY OF APRIL 2025,
READ A SECOND TIME THE 30TH DAY OF APRIL 2025;
READ A THIRD TIME, PASSED THE 30TH DAY OF APRIL 2025.

Board Chair

Secretary-Treasurer

| HEREBY CERTIFY this to be a true and original School District No. 82 (Coast Mountains) Capital Bylaw No.
2025/26-CPSD82-01 adopted by the Board the 30th day of April 2025.

Secretary-Treasurer
59



g; oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #10.2.1

Action: X Information:
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date: April 30, 2025
Topic: Minutes of the Education Committee Meeting, April 15, 2025

Background/Discussion:

Minutes as attached.

Recommended Action:

THAT the minutes of the Education Committee Meeting held April 15, 2025 be received
for information.

Presented by: Superintendent of Schools

60



é E oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

EDUCATION COMMITTEE MEETING

Tuesday, April 15, 2025 — 4:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m:'

Committee Members:
. Trustee Karen Jonkman (Chairperson)

Zoom Virtual Meeting

Phillip Barron, Director of Instruction, Learning Services

Jocelynn Drew, Principal, Bear Valley School (CMAA representative)

Tracey MacMillan, Superintendent of Schools '

Annette McAlpine, Principal, Uplands Elementary School (CMAA representative)

Julia Nieckarz, Director of Instruction, Inclusive Education N

Troy Peters, Chairperson, District Parent Advisory Council (BPAC representative)

Stacey Rodriguez, Vice Principal, Mount Elizabeth Middle-Seeondary School (CMAA representative)

Trustee Julia Sundell

Michelle Sutherland, Teacher, Mount Elizabeth Middle/Secondary School, (CMTE representative)

Regrets:

Anya Carrel, Teacher, Skeena Middle Schoo¥ (CMT Frepresentative)
Monica Brady, President, CUPE Local 2052 (CUPE representative)

Trustee Wayne Jones

Marian Kotowich-Laval, Kitsumklaum FN representative
Tina McDonald, District Principal, Curriculum Support y

Guests:

Recording Secretary:
Carole Gagnon, Executive Assistant

Dan Hamel, Principal, Northwest Trades & Employment Centre

MEETING MINUTES

items

Action

The virtual meeting was called to order at 4:03 p.m.

chaired by Trustee Karen Jonkman, Committee Chairperson.

1. Acknowledgement of the Territories,
Introductions & Welcome

Chairperson Jonkman acknowledged with respect the school district's business being
conducted on the traditional and unceded territories of the Gitxsan, Haisla, Nisga'a
and Ts'mysen Peoples. We are honoured to work with their children and privileged to
live, learn, work, and play on these lands.

A warm welcome was extended to all for joining the virtual Education Committee
Meeting followed by introductions and meeting regrets. Chairperson Jonkman spoke
to Earth Day celebrated on April 22. The theme for Earth Day 2025 is “Our Power,
Our Plant’, inviting everyone around the globe to unite behind renewable energy, and
to triple the global generation of clean electricity by 2030. How? By joining us on
Earth Action Day, encouraging all to take action - educate, advocate, and mobilize.
Pledge an Earth Action on social media. Attend/plan/register a local event. Integrate
Earth Day lessons into your curricula. Take action this Earth Day, Aprit 22, and every
day.

2. Previous Meeting Minutes, February 12,
2025

The meeting minutes of the previous Education Committee Meeting held February 12,
2025 were received.

Information only; no action required.

61

April 15, 2025 Education Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 1 of 3




Ci/oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

3. New Skeena Middle School Video
Presentation

Director Nieckarz provided an introduction prior to viewing the new Skeena Middle
School video with the Education Committee members. The new video stemmed from
an idea of creating a useful tool for the school's neurodiverse learners, so they can
become more familiar with the school.

It is the hope that the students and/or parents__w_hq,have worries attending school will
watch the video and will see how amazing Skeena Middle School is, where we
believe in nurturing the minds and hearts of al students. The vibrant communities at
all Coast Mountains' schools are ‘dgﬂ'ig#e'dfﬁfq-fpstering inclusive schools, a love for
learning and encouraging creafivity through €dllaboration and care. The video
provides a glimpse of the,dynamic classrooms,hinnovative programs, and the
wonderful experiences tfidt fake Skeena Midd'ie__:;-‘&nool unique, where every
student can thrive on ajouifmey of discovery, growth and Siccess.

Information only;_-.ljﬁia_ﬁfbn required.

4, Board Authority Authorized Course:
Resiliency Grade 12, North Coast Distance
Education Program (NTETC)

Director Barron foted that Board/Autfibrity Authorized (BAA) colitses provide an
opportunity for edw;s to exp!gifp.mntent beyond the boundaries of Ministry
curriculum. BAA coursesihelpdeducators, school districts or independent schools
respond to the local needs of sehools and their communities, and to provide choice
dnd flexibility for students. BAA'gourses must be authorized by Boards/Authorities
according tosequirements set by the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

The BAA Course application for Resfliengy. Grade 12 was submitted for consideration
to the Education Committée by the Northwest Trades & Employment Training Centre
for its North Coast Distance Ediication program commencing the 2025-2026 school
year. Regognitiah is provided to fhie Central Okanagan School District (SD23) for
providing pemission to Coast Mountains School District 82 to use their Resiliency
12 BAA Course femplate in the creation of this BAA Course template.

Action: The Education Committee reviewed the above-mentioned BAA Course

‘application with a recommendation to forward to the Board for consideration
~and.approval at the'April 30, 2025 Regular Board Meeting

5. New Distance Learning Management
System: Brightspace, D2L Corporation;
North Coast Distance Education Program
(NTETC).

Director Barron shared the attached overview power point presentation on the new
Distance Learmning Management System for the North Coast Distance Education
program entitled Brightspace created by the D2L Corporation.

D2L Brightspace is used in schools, universities, and corporate training
environments to manage online and blended learning experiences. D2Lisa platform
where instructors can deliver course materials, communicate with students, and
create learning activities, assessments, and quizzes.

In light of the provincial government legislation changes limiting CMSD's ability to
offer distance leaming courses outside the district, the distance leamning student
numbers will continue to shrink. These changes initiated a review of the platforms
currently used by the North Coast Distance Education program.

From the CMSD's context, D2L Brightspace provides the following key deliverables:

1. Improved online course delivery.

2. Teacher component to support in-class Instruction and sharing of resources and
materials.

3. Brightspace provides a resource repository for educators.

62

April 15, 2025 Education Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 2 of 3




Ci'oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

5. New Distance Learning Management
System: Brightspace, D2L. Corporation,
North Coast Distance Education Program
(NTETC) (cont'd)

Director Barron shared a summary of the next steps for the implementation of D2L
Brightspace platform:

In essence, D2L Brightspace is a powerful and versatile platform that can help
educators create engaging and effectjue_lggfmi_ng experiences for a wide range
of learners. o

Training for our Distance Leaming staff Spring 2025.

Pilot Distance Learning componentof D2L Summer/Fall 2025.

Orientation and Training for District and Sehool Based Administration Fall 2025
or early in 2026. 4 o

District wide rollout Sprinig 2026.

Director Barron invited Committee members to parﬁdba!p in break-out rooms for
their feedback on the D2L Brightspace implementation. 'Br;éa_]__-:_out room questions
included the following:
Have you hadany experience yith Gnline learning in the past?
What features m@g{oq Jike to see in an online leaming program (e.g. live
classes, flexible schedules, recorded lessons)?
«  What resources (e.g. parént training, help desk, guides), are likely to help
. people feel more supported?
What does asuccessful distance leaming program look like to you?
Hf you could design one part of this program, what would it be and why?
Whatdo youtope studentsliearners gain from participating in this program
beyond academics? '
Direct Barron ﬂ'lgﬁked Committee members for their great comments noting a written
summary of feedback responses will be shared during the next Education Committee

‘Meeting. He fufther noted the addition of this platform will open a lot of doors for

GMSD students i @ll our communities. Superintendent MacMillan further shared
that colleges.and universities use this platform and what a great positive for CMSD
students using D2L Brightspace when moving to post-second institutions. A win-win
situation all around.

information only; no action required.

6. 'Next Meeting & Adjournment

Chairperson Jonkman thanked everyone for their participation in the meeting. The
next Education Committee Meeting will be held virtually on Wednesday, May 14,
2025 from 4:00 p.m. to 5:30 p.m. via Zoom.

The meeting was adjourned at 5:29 p.m.

63

April 15, 2025 Education Committee Meeting Minutes - Page 3of3




D2L

Brightspace Overview

April 15, 2025




D2L is a dedicated learning partner

’4'. -“'.‘ ;’!r K
i) 7

https://www.d2l.com/awards/

G9



D2L is a Market Leader trusted by

N MICHIGAN
VIRTUAL

£ ALPENA

1:! Public Schools

THIS WORLD

99

NVYC \y

Department of

Education Technology Enabled

Learning s Ont

A { v I‘Iﬂ
Manitoba 9w &)
a2
Education and Training ~

BRITISH
COLUMBIA

HALTON
CATHOLIC | /¢D Ministry of Education

Trunswic

C A N A DA

h Te U ra New ﬁ ouveau
m) K o B AN k

m Calgary Board

VHS 'E‘“\‘ Virtual

Learning HIGH SCHOOL

NECEDAH
SCHOOLS

2 GWINNETT

!RIDGING EDUCATION & TECHNOLOGY

- COUNTY
: K] 2 PUBLIC
. ' SCHOOLS

A Stride Company

114 | of Education



o))
~]

About D2L

About D2L Brightspace

D2L Brightspace is a Learning
Management System (LMS) used in
schools, universities, and corporate
training environments to manage
online and blended learning
experiences.

D2L is a platform where instructors
can deliver course materials,
communicate with students, and
create learning activities,
assessments, and quizzes.




89

D2L
BRIGHTSP.".CE
More Than an LMS

A professional learning platform
built to help you create highly
personalized experiences that
unlock learner potential at
scale.

Digitize
COMPLIANCE

e Content & Video

= Collaboration &
Communication

» Attendance &
Completion

Optimize
TECH TRAINING

» Release Conditions

e Gamification

« Outcomes & Analytics

» Staff Portfolios of
Learning

¢ Multimedia

» Learning Paths

Transform
PEDAGOGY

¢ Learner-centric
« Competency &
Mastery-based
* Personalized

Works for everyone.

Grows with you.



69

D2L
BRIGHTSP/.CE
A Solid Foundation

Great technology is hon-
negotiable. With D2L
Brightspace, worry-free
technology comes standard.

* Mobile * Flexible

» Accessible * Scalable

e Reliable e Secure

» Predictable » Easyto Use

L] L] L] L] L]

Content & Instruction
Assessment, Feedback &
Outcomes
Personalization

Progress Dashboards
Expertise & Support

Game-Based Learning
Awards Leaderboard
Self-Serve-Course
Catalog

Multimedia Presentation
recording

Advanced Analytics
Predictive Analytics
Adaptive Learning



D2L is a learning innovation company helping

you reshape the future of education and work

0L

FROM DISRUPTION

STUDENTS
& FAMILIES

TEACHERS

LEADERSHIP

Disconnected
Underwhelming content
One-size-fits-all learning

Increasing demands
Manual processes
Multiple systems

Disparate systems
Lack of insight from data
Unsupported

Connected
Highly personalized & engaged

Single system for teaching & learning
Automation & personalization at scale

‘| Integrated ecosystem

Actionable data
Trusted partnership




Key Features

1. Learning Management System

(LMS): Brightspace provides a central hub for
all aspects of online learning, from course
content to assessments and communication.

2. Diverse Learning Environments: It supports
various learning models, including online,
blended, and flipped classrooms.

3. Communication Tools: Includes discussion
boards, activity feeds, and web conferencing
to facilitate interaction between students and
instructors.

TL




Key Features
4. Assessment and Grading: Features
———— o for creating and managing
¢ . | assignments, quizzes, exams, and
: rubrics.

5. Analytics and Reporting: Offers
insights into student progress and
learning outcomes.

6. Personalized Learning: Allows for
customized learning paths and
activities based on student needs
and progress.

~J
N



Key Features

7. Accessibility: Designed to be
accessible to learners with
disabilities.

8. Mobile-Friendly: Provides a mobile
app for accessing courses and
resources on the go.

9. Integration with Other Tools: Can
be integrated with other educational
tools and systems.

€L




vancouver

Minisery of % Sl D E S VL s

BRITISH Educatlon and P

COLUMBIA | Child Care North Vancouver
n School District
New i - the natural place to learn’

= Westminster ’ CHEK ABC
G‘:'ﬁ Christlan schooling @ home
‘ Schools N C?B}% v !(L :OS j I

i PrsEl]

SCHOOL DISTRICT 5

ocplivpa Laa
{ -~
/// e S = S /AN I C H ©on Comox Valley Schools
B SCHOOLS  ,eaminc g

SQUIALA
FIRST NATION
: Oy

TLA DT I ~ A By o o e
chool District 47 Powe iver
' SCHOOL DI STRICT!

SECTN a3 Vigate

o0 0o .
ome £t Selesign.
est

L



D2L is your partner in teaching

and learning innovation and transformation

D2L+ YOU

LEARNER SUCCESS f

WORRY-FREE PEDAGOGY & LEARNING HIGH-QUALITY CHANGE MANAGEMENT &
TECHNOLOGY EXPERIENCES CONTENT CUSTOMER SUCCESS

SL



Customer Support

D2L End User & Admin Support

D2L
BRIGHTSPACE

Quick Eval Calendar Checklist Content ePortioho Discussrons A,

My Coursiss W

_H

Course Cuurse2 Coursed

H -
201h-Century French Accouming 1200-01 Accounting
Theatie Inturmation Systems

= @ @ Euﬂk‘almmﬂ @
. How canwe heip?

Heta 2 what) foura

Craating grade items

Create text grade ltems

Use Text grarle lems 10 piovide € anenents [hat
ure noL COUNtEBTaWHI0% JSsels gt grades Tex
Prade ke cannot belong 1o u category and
they da nol 2antibulk (@ tne calculated nnal

ey and assignments Only runretic grade
N e as5otialed wilh Cuuise oled by

Snltnegsihdp?

M e e et o6

Brightspace Community

DéL BRIGHTSPACE " ’
COMMUNI fv r‘ L b Events Engsh(en)> 0 B @

=l

T

Brightsggace Community h

K-12 Corporate

COFFORATE

Stoff Quick Links

BTt At A lop
DAk Knawlodga

D2L ot Got Involvoa Gude
Moose Evant Atchimes i
Communiy Pal« spata Trockee

Torbe 4t Pimanitrs l

9L




Summary and What’s Next?

* In essence, D2L Brightspace is a powerful and versatile platform that
can help educators create engaging and effective learning experiences
for a wide range of learners.

* Training for our Distance Learning staff Spring 2025.

« Pilot Distance Learning component of D2L Summer/Fall 2025.

e Orientation and Training for District and School Based Administration
Fall 2025 or early in 2026.

e District wide rollout Spring 2026.

LL



g 5 oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #10.2.2

Action: X Information:
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date: ~ April 30, 2025
Topic: Board/Authority Authorized (BAA) Course: Resiliency Grade 12,

North Coast Distance Education Program (NTETC)

Background/Discussion:

Board/Authority Authorized (BAA) courses help educators, school districts or independent
schools respond to the local needs of schools and their communities, and to provide choice and
flexibility for students. BAA courses provide an opportunity for educators to explore content
beyond the boundaries of the Ministry curriculum. BAA courses must be authorized by
Boards/Authorities according to requirements set by the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

The following Board/Authority Authorized (BAA) Course is submitted by the Northwest Trades
& Employment Centre for its North Coast Distance Education program for the Board's approval
for the 2025-2026 school year. Attached for reference is an overview power point presentation,
the BAA Course Application including a sample Week 1 Course Class schedule.

Resiliency Grade 12
Recognition is provided to the Central Okanagan School District (SD23) for providing
permission to Coast Mountains School District 82 to use their Resiliency 12 BAA
Course template in the creation of this BAA Course template.

The Education Committee reviewed the BAA Course application at its April 15, 2025 meeting
and forwards to the Board with a recommendation for approval.

Recommended Action:

THAT the Board approve the Board/Authority Authorized (BAA) Course, Resiliency Grade 12
for the North Coast Distance Education Program commencing the 2025-2026 school year as
submitted by the Northwest Trades & Employment Training Centre.

Presented by: Superintendent of Schools

78



BAA: RESILIENCY 12

DEVELOPED BY SD-23




PAIRED WITH
NORTHERN HEALTH'S

COURSE

Referral process
Monday — Thursday
dpm-6pm

Six weeks







DL course (can claim after September)

Scaled down to 2 High school elective
credits

60 hours




Course Name: Resiliency

Grade:12

BIG IDEAS

Demonstrats respact,
care and empathy for
self and others

Evaluate individually
which resilient sklils
and strategies are
most relevant and
achievable

Communicate through
storles our individualism
utilizing the
biopsychosocial and
First Paople’s lenses

Implement awareness
and acceptance of
diversity within our

cullure through actions

and activities

Collaborate different
methods of reslliency and
leaming through varlous

madalitles as students
prepare to move more
independentty into soclety

Learning Standards

ular Competencies

Students are expected lo know the following:

Students are expected {o do the following:

» Healthy relationships

« Communication skills

+ Boundaries

+ Sodial Supports

+ Drug effects and awareness

« Personality traits and identity

+ Understanding & managing emotions
+ Stress and stress relieving techniques
+ Protective Factors

+ Coping mechanisms

« Conflict Resolution

+ Problem Solving

+ Mental Wellness

+ Strengths & Self-Esteern

- Managing Stressors

» Creating a Support System

+ Accessing Resources

« Continually reflect and edit one’s personal value system focusing on positive
attributes learned through the teaching of healthy relationships

- Evaluate skills utilized when faced with a challenge and reflect on efficiency
= Reflect on feelings, find balance with rest and protect khe inner spirit
« Further explore personal stressors and collaborate on effective coping lechniques

» Maintaining healthy relationships & creating support systems

BAA Course Framev.ork Template

€8



Initial sign-up

Touching base throughout program
Connection with Northern Health
Final student self evaluation

Exit interview




THANK YOU

Dan Hamel

Northwest Trades & Employment Training Centre




COAST MOUNTAINS
BOARD OF EDUCATION
SCHOOL DISTRICT 82

Board/Authority Authorized Course Framework — Resiliency 12

School District/Independent School Authority Name:
Coast Mountain School District

School District/Independent School Authority Number (e.g. SD43, Authority #432):
#82

Developed by:
The original course is 4 credits from SD# 23 (Central Okanagan)

Date Developed:
Permission was received from SD# 23 to use their BAA template for
the creation of the NCDES BAA.

School Name:
North Coast Distance Education School (NCDES)

Principal’s Name:
Dan Hamel

Superintendent Approval Date (for School Districts only):

Superintendent Signature (for School Districts only):

Board/Authority Approval Date:

Board/Authority Chair Signature:

Course Name:

Resiliency 12

Grade Level of Course:

12

Number of Course Credits:

2

Number of Hours of Instruction:

60

Board/Authority Prerequisite(s):

Must be referred to the Northern Health Harm Reduction education program.

Special Training, Facilities or Equipment Required:
Northern Health location, after school.

Course Synopsis:

Resiliency 12 provides an opportunity for students to further explore and implement their resiliency skills as they prepare to graduate from high
school. Through activities, self-reflections and possible participation in organizing school and/or community events, students have a clearer positive
view of who they want to become and how to achieve that personal vision.

o)
o)l
BAA Course Framework — Resiliency 12



Goals and Rationale:

Resiliency 12 has been developed to empower students to not only master meaningful content, but to assist them in learning critical thinking skills
that will help them navigate a spectrum of real-life problems. Every learning style is expressed so that each student leaves this course with more
tools in their 'life' toolbox.

Indigenous Worldviews and Perspectives:
- Resilience supports the development of self in support of connecting with others.
Implemented in the curriculum is learning through memory, history and story.
Resiliency is holistic, reflective, experiential, creative and relational.
Resiliency explores one’s belief system, ethical and moral beliefs as well as one’s identity.
Being a student in Resiliency means learning the power of sharing, listening with an open mind, and confidentiality of that sharing.

Additional Information:

Goals & Rationale: This course strives to ignite a positive resilient way of being in students wanting to feel empowered & hopeful about themselves,
their families, their friends, and the world of people around them. To integrate a different lens of learning that will positively impact the everyday
life of each student. This course gives structure and expertise to discussions we need to have in school engaging students to empathically
understand self and others. A detailed outline of the topics to be covered in the course.

Assessment Methods: A district teacher will touch base with Northern Health and verify the learning outcomes have been met by the student.
There will be additional work provided by the district teacher to meet the additional time required to meet the 60 hours.

Resources: Texts and materials will be supplied by Northern Health.

Course Length: Course work is done at Northern Health from 4 to 6pm, Monday to Thursday for six weeks.

Prerequisites: Must be referred to the Northern Health Harm Reduction education program.

Course Content: Pre-work, application, referral process.

Northern Health Course Outline:
Week 1
1. Welcome & Introduction to Stress & Coping
2. Mindfulness & Gratitude
3. Leisure, Recreation, & Play
4. Wellness Wheel & My Past & Future Hands
Week 2
Healthy Relationships
2. Communication Skills
3. Boundaries
4. Social Supports

=N

L8

BAA Course Framework — Resiliency 12



Northern Health Course Outline: (continued)
Week 3
1. What is a Drug
2. Introduction to Harm Reduction
3. Drugs & The Teenage Brain
4. Substance Use Myths & Facts - Personal Identity
Week 4
1. Understanding Emotions
2. Managing Emotions
3. Strengths & Self Esteem
4. Experiencing Positive Emotion Outing
Week 5
1. Values
2. Managing Stressors
3. Problem Solving
4. Goal Setting
Week 6
Creating a Support System
2. Mental Wellness
3. Accessing Resources
4. Reflection & Graduation
5.

—

Follow-up, self-reflection and exit interview with the teacher.

88

BAA Course Framework — Resiliency 12



Course Name: Resiliency

Grade 12

BIG IDEAS

Evaluate individually W
which resilient skills
and strategies are
most relevant and
achievable

Demonstrate respect,
care and empathy for
self and others

Curricular Competencies

Students are expected to do the following:

techniques.

Communicate through
stories our individualism |
utilizing the
biopsychosocial and
First People’s lenses

| I
[
1

=a

Implement awareness

and acceptance of the
diversity within our

Collaborate different
methods of resiliency and
learning through various

culture through actions modalities as students
and activities prepare to move more
l independently into society

Continually reflect and edit one's personal value system focusing on
positive attributes learned through the teaching of healthy relationships

Evaluate skills utilized when faced with a challenge and reflect on efficiency.
Reflect on feelings. finding balance with rest and protecting the inner spirit.

Further explore personal stressors and collaborate on effective coping

Maintaining healthy relationships and creating support systems

T . = e = - -
SR BN o L N e T b +x st e

Students are expected to know the following:

» Healthy relationships

« Communication skills

» Boundaries

« Social Supports

- Drug effects and awareness

= Personality traits and identity

» Understanding & managing emotions
» Stress and stress relieving technigues
* Protective Factors

« Coping mechanisms

- Conflict Resolution

* Problem Solving

» Mental Wellness

» Strengths & Self-Esteem

« Managing Stressors

- Creating a Support System

- Accessing Resources

68

BAA Course Framework — Resiliency 12




_Big Ideas — Elaboratio_ns |

Resilient: Resiliency is the term applied to children exposed to severe risk factors, such as poverty, who nevertheless thrive and excel. It
is the ability to spring back from, and successfully adapt to, adversity.

Individualism: The ability to formuiate and implement individual ideologies and skills.

Curricular Competencies — Elaborations

Defense Mechanisms: The methods in which we develop to protect our self-esteem, satisfy our needs, and reduce anxiety from
frustration.

Personal Value System: Taking in all information learned in class and producing a protective factor based, fluid personal philosophy in
which to follow throughout life.

Drug Effects: How both illicit and prescribed drugs effect our neural connections and pathways both physically and psychologically.

Protective Factors: "A characteristic at the biological, psychological, family, or community (including peers and culture) level that is
associated with a lower likelihood of problem outcomes or that reduces the negative impact of a risk factor on problem outcomes" (O'Connell,

Boat, & Warner, 2009 p.xxvii).

Recommended Instructional Components:
Direct Instruction » Demonstrations (story sharing) + Modelling (guest speakers) » Student-in-Role* Peer teaching (group work) « Experiential

Learning = Reflective Writing

Recommended Assessment Components: Ensure alignment with the Principles of Quality Assessment
Journaling * Peer Assessment « Self-Assessment « Group Assessment - Oral Presentations * Organizational Assessment

Learning Resources:
Harm reduction materials from Northern Health.

Vo)
o
BAA Course Framework — Resiliency 12



Week 1
Mindfulness & Gratitude

Day 2

Slide 1: Group Title
Slide 2: Group Outline

Slide 3: Check In & Review
Ask questions to promote group discussion:
o How is everyone feeling about last session?
o Do you have any questions or concerns?
o Did anyone use any of the skills from the last session?

o We are at the beginning of our journey through the next 6 weeks. | want you to take a second and think of what
kind of animal you are? Go around the room and ask each participant to share their animal.

o Now | want you to think about what animal you want to become. Going around the room, inviting participants
to share the animal they want to become and why. Writing down their answers as this will be asked again in

week 6.

Slide 4: Warm Up
Put a fine (or imaginary line) down the middle of the room. Give participants a question that has two options. Have
participants move to the side of the room that they agree with or prefer. Some prompts:
Hot dogs or hamburgers?
Ice cream or cake?
Mountains or beach?
Hot or cold?
Fall or spring?
Winter or summer?
Fruit or vegetables?
Watch the movie or read the book?

Slide 5: Gratitude

Ask guestions to promote discussion:
o What does gratitude mean to you?
o Have you practiced gratitude?

Slide 6: Gratitude Definition
Ask if a group member would like to read the definition. If not, read the following:

o “Gratitude is when you feel thankful for the good things in your life. This could be stuff people often take for
granted, like having a place to live, food, clean water, friends, and family. Gratitude is taking a moment to reflect
on how lucky you are when something good happens, whether it's small or big.”

Source: https://kidshealth.org/
Information provided by Nemours KidsHealth. For more on this topic, visit KidsHealth.org.

91



Slide 7: Science of Happiness- An Experiment in Gratitude Video

Play video and discuss!
o An Experiment in Gratitude | The Science of Happiness (youtube.com)
o What did you think of the video?

Slide 8: Gratitude Activities
Read to the group:
o Think of a time when you were grateful for something or someone.
o Spend 10-15 minutes and write down, draw, doodle what happened in that moment that made you grateful. Try
to be as detailed as possible.
o Orwrite a letter to someone who has made a positive impact for you, friend, family member, teacher etc.
o Invite participants to share what they chose to write, draw, or doodle.

Slide 9: Gratitude Jar
Review the following with the group:
o What are some other ways you could practice gratitude? How often would you practice?
o One way is to create a gratitude jar.
o Have participants writer what they are grateful on sticky notes and put them in a jar to read before the end of
session.

Slide 10: Mindfulness
Encourage a group discussion on what participants know about mindfulness
o Has anyone’s thoughts focus on past or future events? Like something you did yesterday, or last week? Or
perhaps thinking of something coming up in the future, a party or a school project which is due?
o Thisis very common for everyone.
o Who has heard of mindfulness? Have you practiced it?
Read to Group:
o Mindfulness is paying full attention to the present moment. It means taking your time to really notice what
you're daing.

Slide 11: Everyday Mindfulness
Play video and ask questions to promote group discussion:
Everyday mindfulness (voutube.com)
o What do you think are some ways you can practice mindfulness in your day?
o Has anyone tried mindful eating, mindful walking? If so, how was it for you?
o Over the 6 weeks of group we will practice several different mindfulness activities like, body scan, guided
imagery, grounding, using objects (rocks), and progressive muscle relaxation.

slide 11: Beginners Meditation Video & Discussion (Use only if there is enough time)

o 8-Minute Beginners Meditation for Kids, Preteens, Teens, and Classrooms (youtube.com)

Slide 12: Sensory Jars Mindfulness (20-35 minutes)
o Each participant gets one jar each.
o Place all supplies needed out.
o Instructions: 1/3 clear glue, add glitter, etc. and add warm water. Hot glue top when done.
o Play music and read out Mind in a Jar Script. Source: Amazenu.com

92



Slide 13: Wrap Up Discussion (10 minutes)

o Have each participant to pick out a slip from the gratitude jar and read out or facilitator can read out gratitude
jar slips.
How was it to hear your gratitude slips out loud?
What did you notice about today’s activities?
On a scale of 1-10 how likely are you to mindfulness or gratitude practice into your day? 1 not at all/ 10- yes.
On a scale of 1-10, would gratitude/ mindfulness help you with your substance use goal? 1 not at all/ 10 yes |
think these strategies would help.

O 0O O O

93



Mind in a Jar Activity

This jar represents your mind. The liquid is clear and all the glitter is sitting at the bottom. The
jaris calm. This would be your mind when you are feeling calm, alert, balanced, and rested.
Your mind is clear and you are thinking clearly.

Take a deep breath and think about where you are in this present moment, right here, right
now. Notice what you see, hear, smell, taste and feel. This is called present moment awareness
or mindfulness. You are paying attention to the present moment in a particular way; thatis, on
purpose and without judging or reacting.

Shake the jar and watch the glitter swirl around in the jar. Each piece of glitter in this jar
represents a thought, feeling, memory, story, a to-do list, an event last night, an appointment
next week, a due date tomorrow. Think of the jar as your mind when you have strong feelings
or many, many thoughts swirling around in your head. This can create stress in your body and
shallow quick breathing. It's hard to focus. You may react quickly or say something without
thinking. Its easy to start blaming and judging yourself or others. You might be feeling tension
in your body.

Now lets see what happens to your mind when you just sit quietly for a minute and breathe
slowly, inhaling and exhaling through your nose. If a new thought comes to your mind and you
notice it simply go back to focusing on your breath. Watch the glitter in the jar slowly falling.
The water in the jar becomes clearer as the glitter rests at the bottom of the jar. Notice if there
is a change in your body and in your mind, also. Does the mind in the jar match the mind in your
head? It might not, it takes practice. It is simple but not always easy to do. With daily practice
you will quickly get better at it.

You can do this experiment anytime you find yourself feeling tense, angry, frustrated, nervous,
overwhelmed or confused. Just take a few long, slow, deep breaths for a minute, focusing on
the inhales and exhales. Brings yourself back to the present moment, to right here and right
now. Remember the Mind-in-the-Jar Experiment to bring yourself back to thinking calmly and
clearly again.

"Mindfulness is paying attention in a particular way; on purpose, in the present moment and
non-judgementally.”
-Jon Kabat-Zinn, Author of Mindfulness for Beginners

Source:
Amazingu.com

94



ﬂ_ E oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #11.1

Action: X Information:
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date:  April 30, 2025
Topic: Maintenance & Facilities Department Replacement Vehicles

Background/Discussion:

Due to aging equipment and ongoing repairs the Maintenance and Facilities Department require
the replacement of two vehicles as detailed below. The schoo! district strives to replace units
after 10 years of service to limit repair costs, ensure safety and reliability. For notation, the first 2
digits of a unit's number indicates its purchase year.

Purchase #1

- A new half ton, 4-wheel drive, 4-door pick-up truck will be assigned to the Manager of
Maintenance. The proposed replacement vehicle is a 2024 Ford F-150 XL at a cost of
$66,777.63 to be purchased from Totem Ford (see attached quote and vehicle
specifications).
The Manager's current vehicle, unit 1402, is a 1/1 ton, 4-wheel drive, 4-door pick-up truck
with 256,000 kilometres that will be re-assigned to grounds duties in Terrace, replacing unit
0753, a half-ton van with 225,000 kilometres. A pick-up truck is a more appropriate vehicle
for grounds work activities and it is estimated the unit will be functional in this role for 3-5
years. Unit 0753 will be disposed of by auction.

Purchase #2

- A new Ram Promaster van will be assigned to the Terrace Maintenance pool. The proposed
replacement vehicle is a 20256 Ram Promaster cargo van at a cost of $78,208.63 to be
purchased from Terrace Chrysler (see attached quote and vehicle specifications).
The current Terrace Maintenance pool vehicle, Unit 1603, is a Promaster van with 117,000
kilometres. It will undergo some mechanical repairs and be re-assigned to grounds duties in
Kitimat, replacing unit 0752, a van in very poor condition with 139,000 kilometres. Unit 1603
should function in this role for 5 years. Unit 0752 will be disposed of by auction.

This request is being forwarded directly to the Board for consideration on the recommendation of
the Secretary Treasurer.

Recommended Action:

THAT the Board approve the purchase of the 2024 Ford F-150 truck and the 2025 Ram
Promaster cargo van for a total combined price of $144,986.26 utilizing capital replacement
dollars through Local Capital Reserves.

\iresented by: Secretary Treasurer

95



"-T:‘—‘ - Terace Totern Ford and
‘_:_'_:_',r Soow Valiny Ford

Vehicle
2024 FORD F-150 XL
Stock 44551
VIN 1FTFWI1L89RKE41773
Type New Vehicle
Model WiL
Number
Exterior ICONIC SILVER
Interior DARK SLATE CLOTH
Engine 3.5L V6 ECOBOOST
Transmission Electronic 10-Speed Automatic -
inc: SelectShift w/
Drive Four Wheel Drive
Body 4WD SuperCrew 6.5 Box
Qdometer 12
Options
Base Price $68,650.00
JS - ICONIC SILVER METALLIC $0.00
C - CLOTH 40/20/40 $0.00
S - MEDIUM DARK SLATE $0.00
103A - EQUIPMENT GROUP $1,395.00
XL SERIES $0.00

17" SILVER PAINTED ALUMINUM $0.00
.CHROME FRONT/REAR BUMPERS $0.00
.FOG LAMPS $0.00
.PRIVACY GLASS W/REAR $0.00
DEFROSTER

.136 LITRE/ 36 GALLON FUEL TANK $0.00

998 - 3.5L V6 ECOBOOST ENGINE ($600.00)

44G - ELECTRONIC 10-SPD AUTO $0.00
T7C - LT265/70R 17C BSW ALL- $350.00
TERRAIN

XL9 - 3.55 ELECTRONIC LOCK RR $0.00
AXLE

7200# GVWR PACKAGE $0.00
JOB #2 ORDER $0.00
CV LOT MANAGEMENT $0.00
153 - FRONT LICENSE PLATE $0.00
BRACKET

188 - BLACK RUNNING BOARDS  $600.00
41H - ENGINE BLOCK HEATER $375.00
53T - TOW/HAUL PACKAGE $1,075.00
INTEGRATED TRLR BRAKE CNTRL  $0.00
55A - FX4 OFF ROAD PACKAGE ~ §$1,345.00
.SKID PLATES $0.00
693 - PARTIAL GAS FILL $0.00
XL SERIES DISCOUNT (51,750.00)

4631 Keith Avenue
Terrace, BC, V8G 1K3

Customer
Name

Address

City, Province
Postal Code
Code

Email

Cash
Selling Price
FLEET DISC
AIR LEVY
TIRE LEVY
Freight
License
Battery

as

TAG PACKAGE

Rep: Brad Opheim
Phone: (250) 635-4984
Fax: (250) 635-2783

COAST MOUNTAIN

BOARD OF
EDUCATION
3211 KENNEY
STREET

TERRACE, BC
V8G 3E9
34002

Date: 04/08/2025

Key: <<New Deal>>

carole.

gagnon@cmsd.bc.ca

BOXLINER/MUDFLAPS

Trade
Sub-Total

$58,067.50

$71,440.00
(515,000.00)
$100.00
$32.50
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$1,495.00
$0.00

| / We have reviewed the above disclosure and agree to the vehicie, price and payment information as declared.

X
COAST MOUNTAIN BOARD OF EDUCATION

Tax: BC LUX
Lead Not Set
Business (250) 6354931
Cell (250) 922-5498
Contract Date 04/08/2025
Payment Date 04/08/2025
PST Taxable $58,067.50
PST 10% $5,806.75
GST Taxable $58.067.50
GST 5% $2,903.38
Luxury Tax Taxable $0.00
Luxury Tax 10% $0.00
Payout Lien Amount $0.00
Cash Down $0.00
Total Balance Due $66,777.63
Amount Received $0.00
Due on Delivery $66,777.63

X

Dealer Acwpta%ce

——

96



KAN-000560

VEHICLE DESCRIPTION

tordca

STANDARD EQUIPMENT
ATANDARD ROUSPISINT

F-150

2024 F-150 4X4 SUPERCREW
157" WHEELBASE

3.5L V6 ECOBODST ENGINE
ELECTRONIC 10-5PD AUTO

BCLUDAD AT WO EXTRA CHANGE I8 THE SALE FFUCE DILOW

EXTERIOR

= AUTQ HIGH BEAMS

= DAYTIME RUNNING UIGHTS

» EASY FUEL CAPLESS FILLEA
» FULLY DOXED STEEL FRAME
» HEADLAMPS - AUTOLAMP

« WIPERS, FIONT INTERMITTENT

INTERIOR

« 12* PRODUCTIVITY SCAEEN
* CRUISE CONTROL

+ DOOR LQCKS, POWER

0 ENTRY
+ QUTSIOE TEMP & COMPASS
+ POWER PGINT, FRONT
« STEERING WHEEL, TILT/TELES

120240

EXTERIOR

ICONIC SILVER METALLIC

INTERIOR

DARK SLATE CLOTH 40/20/40

EUNCTIONAL

» AM/FM STEREO

* BLIS W/CROSS TRAFFIC

* GURVE CONTROL

* FORDPASS CONNECT™

+ MILL START ASSIST

* LANE-KEEPING SYSTEM

+ PQYT-COLLISION BRAKING

* PRE-COLLISION ASSIST W/AED
+ REAR VIEW CAMERA

» REVERSE SENSING BYSTEM

* SELEGTSHIFT™ AUTO. TRANS
* SYNO®4 W/EVR & 12" SCREEN

BAEETY/BECURITY
+ ADVANCETRAC W/

ROLL STABIUTY CONTROL
= AIR BAGS, SIDE
« AIRBAGS - SAFETY CANOPY®
« ANRBAGS, DRIVER A PASS
« PERIMETER ALARM
« 505 POST CAASH ALERT SYST
+ GTOLEN VEH SVCS: | YRPLAN
+ STOP LAMP, 1UGH MOUNT CTIt
+ TIRE PRESSURE MONITON SYS

ation do carburant

comblnedicombinde

| 23..

L/100 km
145 9.7

city highway
vila routs

Gasollne Vehicle
Véhicule & essence

Annual tuel COSt
for an annual d.stante of 20,000 um, and sn
avaesgu luel prica of $1.45 per Llra

$ 3567

Coilit anncel en carburant

POUr UNe tkatance annuello da 20 600 hm, et un
paln muyon du carburant do 1,45 § par bru

Standard plckup trucks ranga
ftam /
Les camionnettea ardinairos font

ontra
3.2-19.8 L,/100 km

Carbon Dloxlda Rating £ Indice du dloxyda da carbona

Smag Rating / Indica ds Smag

D ar D

Ret'=odlew

L6

Rasurnaddiogt
du tuyau i’

WARBANTY

+ 3 YA/BO,000 KM BASIC

« GYEAR/100,000 KM
POWERTRAIN
ROADSIDE ASSISTANGE 24 HRS

(MSRP)"

* TRAILER HITCH, CLASS IV

1, 3 saschne bive our. e |
1, st e tuvalont dasgice

INCLUDED ON THIS VEHICLE

BASE PRICE
TOTAL OPTIONR/OTHER

$66,255.00
XL SERIES 4,840.00
«17* SILVER PAINTED ALUMINUM
“CHROME FNONT/REAR BUMPERS
“FOQ LAMPS

«PRUIVACY GLASS W/NEAT DEFROSTE

70,895.00
2,395.00
73,290.00
1,750.00

TQTAL VEHICLE & OPTIONS/OTHER
DESTINATION & DEUVERY

TOTAL BEFORE REDUCTIONS

XL SERIES DISCOUNT = Overall Vehicle Scoro /

Download the o and

Coto globale du véhicule St e
Aceens Vehicle Conbrol Features

» Rerxitety stast, lock 8nd unlock your vehile

- Locateyouw vehicie and check approdmate

2024 MODEL YEAR

FEDERAL EXCISE TAX 100,00
.136 LITRE/ 38 GALLON FUEL TAN

3.5 V8 ECOBOOST ENGINE - 600,00
LT265/70R 17C BSW ALL-TENRAIN 350,00
185 ELECTRONIC LOCK FIR AXLE NQ CHARGE
72008 GVWR PACKAGE asTsST
BLACK RUNNING BOARDS 600,00 Slde Crash
ENGINE BLOCK HEATER 75.00 Collislon latérale
50 STATE EMISSIONS NO CHARGE
TOWHAUL PACKAGE 1,026.00
JINTEGRATED TRLR DRAKE CNTRL
FX4 OFF ROAD PACKAGE

.SKID PLATES

TOTAL REDUCTIONS = 1,750.00

= Frontal Crash Drivar { Cenductour
SALE on'&:’g}m‘f&ﬁ%‘: Callislon frantale Passonger / Passagaer
RETAIL

PRICES EXCLUDE

fuel ange
« Receive vehicle health slorts

* K Ak &
* Kk k%

* k k &

Star ralings range from 110 5 slars (x ¢ e a ¢}, with 5 being the highest
Les cotas varionl do 1 3 5 dlodes (s » +a #), 5 &tant la cote la plus 8levée

Activate 4G LTE Wi FL Hotspot

= Newvetiitles Inthode 8 3 menth o 3GB dats
(whihevet comes firs1) Y Fitdal

« Conrnect Lo Lo ten Wi-Fi-equepped devices.

Front seal | Skge avand
Rear weal f Sego aniete

Rollover / Copotage

1,345.00

Askyoursales consy taht

Source: U.S. National Highway TraHic Safety Administration
For more Information / Pour do plus amples renselgnemonts
www.salercargov

(AT

KE417

BEALD THYENDY & DEALER HO CONCTGEICNNAINE
Terrace Totem Ford Bales Ltd
4631 Kelth Avenue

Tertsce DC CAN V3G 1K3

oparatonal at
this bme

D70 199 Nt un

CABB

TOTAL MSRP  §71,540.00

% MANUFACTURER'S SUGGESTED RETAIL PRICE = MSRP

*NOTE: VIS PRICL HAS ALEM DIVLLOMD AS & CLADE DCALLRS MAY BILL
HOR LESS AND) AHE HOT UNDLR ANT OBUIGAIION TO ADCTPI THIY
SUGCTS1ED RATAIL FRICL.

B70 199

FINAL ABSEMOLY PLANTS
UBINE DE WONTADE

KANSAS CITY

FOR PLANT
USE ONLY

R 1D o (b b et

RAMP TWO/
EXPECRD® A s ot 065 o rd 1] b TRHMINAL DEUT

Persanaten your vehde weth Ford Cuiton Acrmanin.
Cornse Ford Advmaaties sie sngrvwrnd Bi v wisle
rad Lan Ber b S wides 1 | e Hiew Yehucie Limand
Wamanty [rrtan condtons, bmvistoss ool eacivuons.
apely. St o Dealer fr deials,

Insest o Ford Protect) 1heanly extended snvice plan fully hatked
by Fodandihonored a every Ford ealarsontha Us.and Conada. | 241538, 0t
Seq'yous Ford dealor for acknitionwl drLaLs, of vl www fosd 2a N
FORDPRAOTECT ¢y inare Information.

P THROUGHEIPEDILA VA NETROD OF T meme
f e TSRt B87-8004 O/T 2

CONVOY

RF182 N RE2X 445 000560 06 1824




N TERRACE

e

Vehicle
2025 RAM PROMASTER CARGO VAN
TRADESMAN

Stock 5861
VIN 3C6MRVHG3SE519941
Type New Vehicle
Model VF3L16
Number

Exterior Bright White Clear Coat
Interior BLACK
Engine 3.6L PENTASTAR VVT V6
Transmission 9-Spd 948TE Auto Transmission f
Drive Front Wheel Drive
' Body 3500 High Roof 169" WB w/Pass

Seat

Odometer _ 0
Options

Base Price $62,715.00
228 - Customer Preferred Package $595.00
22B

ERF - 3.6L V6 24V VVT Engine $0.00
DFH - 9-Spd 948TE Auto $0.00
| Transmission

PW7 - Bright White Clear Coat $0.00
APA - Monotone Paint $0.00i
TBB - Full Size Spare Tire $295.00
-SDD - Premium Heavy Duty $200.00
‘Suspension

NAS - 50 State Emissions $0.00
LCP - MOPAR Cargo Area Lighting-  $375.00
LED
‘CAA - Passenger Double Seat $395.00
. AZ3 - Upfitter's Prep Package $545.00
ATT - Power Group $645.00
AJ1 - Safety Group $2,545.00
| XFH - Class 1V Receiver Hitch $595.00

ADK - Premium Convenience Group $2,395.00

YGV - 4.5 Additional Gallons of Gas $0.00
4EX - Sales Tracking $0.00
5N6 - Easy Order $0.00
| *A7 - Cloth Buckets Seats $0.00
-X9 - Black $0.00
573 $0.00|
Selling Price $71,300.00|

TERRACE CHRYSLER LTD.
4916 HIGHWAY #16 WEST
CHRYSLER TERRACE,

Rep: HOUSE HOUSE Date: 11/21/2024
Phone: (250) 635-7187 Key: <<New Deal>>
BC, v8G 1L8 Fax: Tax: BC
Customer
Name COAST Lead Not Set
MOUNTAINS Home (250) 635-4931
SCHOOL DIST #82 Business (250) 638-4418
Address 3211 KENNEY Cell (250) 615-7514
. . STREET Contract Date 11/21/2024
City, Province TERRACE, BC Payment Date 11/21/2024
Postal Code V8G 3E9
Code 1102
Email FINANCE@CMSD.
BC.CA - _ 1
Cash
Selling Price $71,300.00 PST Taxable $68,007.50
COAST MOUNTIN FELET  ($3,675.00) PST 10% $6,800.75
Prorate Rent_SCI Lease Tax $0.00 GST Taxable $68,007.50 |
Finance Placement Fee $0.00 GST5% $3,400.38
Air Tax Recovery Fee $100.00  Luxury Tax Taxable $0.00
Doc Fee $0.00  Luxury Tax 10% $0.00
Lien Search Fee $0.00  Payout Lien Amount $0.00
Tire Levy $32.50 Cash Down $0.00 |
{DEALER PROFIT $250.00 Total Balance Due $78,208.63 |
| Trade $0.00 Amount Received $0.00
| Sub-Total $68,007.50  Due on Delivery B ~ $78,208.63 |

98



g ; oast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

MEETING AGENDA ITEM #12.1

Action: X Information:
Meeting: Regular Meeting Date: April 30, 2025
Topic: Board Chair Report — April 2025

Background/Discussion:

Attached for Trustees’ information is the Board Chairs Report for the month of April 2025
respectfully submitted by Board Chair Margaret Warcup.

A monthly Board Chair Report will be provided for inclusion in the agenda package for future
Regular Board Meetings.

Recommended Action:

THAT the Board receive for information the Board Chair's Report for April 2025.

Presented by: Board Chair

99



g-/6ast Mountains Board of Education School District 82

BOARD CHAIR REPORT
APRIL 30, 2025 REGULAR BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING

Following Spring Break and with no Committee or Board Meetings scheduled in March, we are now into the
last few months of school before Summer Break. | am noticing how many of our schools, students and staff
are outside gardening and enjoying time on our school grounds.

| attended the provincial Board Chairs and Partner Liaison Meetings hosted by the British Columbia School
Trustees Association (BCSTA) and the Ministry of Children and Child Care in Vancouver on March 6 and 7,
2025. The education component of the meeting focused on Managing Difficult Conversations presented by
Gina Niccoli-Moen, Retired Superintendent from Burnaby and now a member or the Holloway Group.

The first day for the Board Chairs Meeting included infomercials input as breaks on the Managing Difficult
Conversations presentations. These were from the Capital Working Group, then Climate Action Working
Group, the Bylaw Review Committee, the Anti-Racism, Diversity, Equity and Inclusion Working Group, the
Comprehensive School Health Working Group, Bargaining, Rural and Remote Network, Inclusion and
Accessibility Working Group. Many Trustees are participating in these committees to inform our advocacy
and actions as Trustees.

| noted the following and Trustees can read full reports on the BCSTA Portal.

= The Capital Working Group noted concern that there has been flat funding for maintenance and there
continues to be a need for capital funding. The committee is collating and dialoguing on information and
statements addressing what the government can act on.

= The Climate Action Group is working with the Capital Working Group in regard to BC Climate Solutions
to address climate change linked to student success.

= The Anti Racism Diversity and Inclusion Working Group has completed a report titied Priority Actions to
be Taken that includes recommendations on equitable learing opportunities and legal obligations for all
children.

= The School Health Committee is addressing actions for the One Province One Plan for comprehensive
school health. The Bargaining workshop addressed the role of Trustees in the bargaining process which
includes our responsibility for approving the bargaining plan(s) and discussion on whom as a Trustee
can participate in bargaining. BCPSEA has developed and will be implementing a comprehensive
communications plan when bargaining is occurring.

= | am participating in the Rural and Remote Committee, and we will have met just before the BCSTA
Annual General Meeting, so | will verbally share our actions at the April Regular Board Meeting.

= The Inclusion and Accessibility Committee is focusing on our legal responsibilities by reviewing
inclusion matters with a lens of improving student outcomes.

Learning Together, Realizing Success for All - Engage, Ignite, Empower Page 1 of 3

100



BOARD CHAIR REPORT (continued)
APRIL 2025 REGULAR BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING

The second day encompassed the Partner Liaison Meeting which included the Honourable Minister of
Education and Child Care Lisa Beare giving opening remarks followed by BCSTA, the BC School
Superintendents Association (BCSSA) and the BC Association of School Business Officials (BCASBO)
presenting opening remarks prior to the Ministry Update and Priorities presented by Deputy Minister of
Education and Child Care Kaye Krishna.

Minister Beare in her opening remarks commented on the Ministry of Education and Child Care mandate
letter noting the importance of birth to graduation responsibilities of child care and the seamless day. She
mentioned the importance of federal funding, literacy support, feeding futures, reconciliation, recruitment and
retention with the focus on rural educator employment commitment for a Provincial Teacher Mentorship
program. She also stressed listening to our communities and students and the move to the increased need
for cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) and other trainings including automated external defibrillator (AED)
and Naloxone. She concluded her comments on a commitment for infrastructure support and the south-of-
the-border ‘threats” and addressing Buy BC Local.

The Deputy Minister, BCSTA, BCASBO and BCSSA also noted priorities for health care and education safety,
the need for more supports in classrooms, certification of educators, addressing recruitment and retention at
a time of having economic uncertainties.

Other presentations included a question-and-answer panel on Management Foundation Standards, an
annual update on the Framework for Enhancing Student Learning followed by presentations on Student
Safety, Indigenous Education and finishing with Cyber Security.

The presentations on Management Foundation Standards emphasized the importance of our strategic
planning and the link of the strategic plan to our individual school plans. The Ministry has an annual review
process where 20 school districts have a full report every 3 years and on-off years are given an update. We
have received Coast Mountains' report and it has been reviewed by staff, the Education Committee and the
Board. The question that was raised, and is being discussed, is what structures need to be in place to monitor
continuous improvement goals being accomplished. A question being considered on what are the systemic
barriers and how do we do ongoing strategic engagement.

In regard to student safety, the presentation discussed the need to dig deeper into intervention failures and
the use of Codes of Conduct for parents, students and others. Something our Board can continue to discuss.

The Distinctions-Based approach was reviewed, and this government paper is accessible on government
websites for all to review.

The Partner Liaison Meeting concluded with a presentation on cybersecurity by provincial Ministry staff that
addressed the critical need for our incident response plan(s) and our need for investing in cybersecurity,
assessing risks and ongoing learning about this high-risk area. The emphasis on the importance of us all to
keep on top of learning in this area was stressed. To do so, BCPSEA provided online training for BCPSEA
Board members, and | completed this and learned more. Perhaps we can consider this for Trustees. There
is a lot to understand and to protect our systems.

Leaming Together, Realizing Success for All - Engage, Ignite, Empower Page 2 of 3

101



BOARD CHAIR REPORT (continued)
APRIL 2025 REGULAR BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING

Trustees will have for this meeting, having just returned from the BCSTA Annual General Meeting, where
nine motions regarding BCSTA Bylaws will have been addressed. This committee has proposed nine
motions to update the bylaws.

Respectfully submitted by,
7

Trustee Margaret Warcup
Board Chair

We respectfully acknowledge that the lands on which we live, work, learn and play as the
traditional and unceded territories of the Gitxsan, Nisga'a, Haisla and Ts'msyen Peoples.

Leaming Together, Realizing Success for All - Engage, Ignite, Empower Page 3 of 3 102



